Independent Auditor’s Report
BItZHENHRS

Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and the Audit Committee for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.

120  Vedan International (Holdings) Limited b fHEIR (Z88) A RAE

HEL

BAREFAHHAMEEAR - HMEEEE
FRANFAER EFEEGRSHBRRK
IR BB R

EMABEEMBRROBERERNREEME
B RATAHZEFEMERHREAMEAN
ERER -

,muﬁﬁﬁﬁé%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ’ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ
HEHEMERS  EIERT ZTEHMER
BHRESHBRRARMAEEFBERRT

%mﬁﬂﬁfikﬁﬁjM¥ﬁT§kﬁﬁﬁ

BB °

ERBRMERTHIF MREMIREAME
BEEERERRL RMTEREZEE-
TEAE RFIRBEEAKRS -

EERE
£
ERREFREERBEEEGHMAGEMA
(BEMBREEL) REB(QREFEG) K
ERERFAEEMTENGRSYHRES 1Y
RAREEEMBRRNBRESFEHARR
B HE 58 T G B A EE KA AR PR P T Y P SR
wag-

SFEEEMGREMBRRARKENE

TREFSVBRRE BEFEEHME B
EEEKENEN LEERBER TIRERE
BREEMNEE UAERFEKER T
BEHC-BREEFEER BEEFEINGFELE
g PR EAMBERNERS R

BZEGAAEEE SEENUBERSSE



Independent Auditor’s Report
BitZHENR S

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors” use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BItZHENHRS

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Chan Chiu Kong, Edmond.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 21 March 2023
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

HEEERER

As at 31 December

®+=ZA=+—H
2022 2021
—=__ T —F
Note uss$000 Us$'000
B & TE7x FE=r
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ETRHEE
Property, plant and equipment ME- -BERZE 6 152,074 158,339
Right-of-use assets FRAEEE 7 5,152 4,841
Intangible assets B EE 8 2,080 2,100
Long-term prepayments REATAETRIB 13 1,301 2,718
Investment in an associate R—HEBEREZ
A=t 10 4,174 4,702
Total non-current assets ERBEELE 164,781 172,700
Current assets REEE
Inventories =78 12 140,527 101,648
Trade receivables FE U & 5 B TR 13 33,990 32,164
Prepayments and other receivables FE 15 7R IE K H At FE Uk
I 13 18,738 11,449
Amounts due from related parties EWERBEALRIE  32(d) 126 1,442
Structured bank deposits ERMERTER 14 = 2,533
Pledged bank deposits IRIRIRITER 14 - 1,075
Cash and cash equivalents RERIREEEY 14 47,810 66,136
Total current assets MEBEHEE 241,191 216,447
Total assets BERE 405,972 389,147
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners of the ERTEE ANEM
Company e
Share capital [N 15 15,228 15,228
Reserves (] 16 276,260 286,561
291,488 301,789
Non-controlling interest FERERR i S 230 228
Total equity R AREE 291,718 302,017
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

HAEEERER

As at 31 December

w+=-—BA=+—H
2022 2021
—FZ T —F
Note us$’000 us$'000
B = T=7x FE7
LIABILITIES ==}
Non-current liabilities ERHEE
Bank borrowings RITEE 18 3,431 8,647
Lease liabilities HEaE 7 3,035 2,650
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFRSIREE 19 577 1,665
Retirement benefit obligations BHRENEE 27 1,526 1,505
Total non-current liabilities JERENE[F4EEE 8,569 14,467
Current liabilities mEBE
Trade payables FE{T B 5 BRFR 17 27,591 17,510
Accruals and other payables FEtER &
HMEM I 17 20,140 21,316
Amounts due to related parties EtERBEALTRIE  32(d) 149 517
Bank borrowings RITEE 18 56,190 31,661
Lease liabilities HEaE 7 443 369
Current income tax liabilities BIEAFR SR B & 1,172 1,290
Total current liabilities mEIBEEEE 105,685 72,663
Total liabilities BREE 114,254 87,130
Total equity and liabilities EmkaGen 405,972 389,147

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in conjunction Ltz S EBEEAEXREERMBEMN:T —6f
with the accompanying notes. SR

The consolidated financial statements on pages 123 to 213 were HREI123E213EH 2 ESHBRRENR S

approved by the Board of Directors on 21 March 2023 and were Z—Z=&=A-+—HESEEFEFMTHTIA
signed on its behalf. THEREZ-

Yang, Tou-Hsiung Yang, Kun-Hsiang

L EEV: ke

Director Director

BE -3

124 Vedan International (Holdings) Limited B BT (Z88) A RAE



Consolidated Income Statement

malkmER
Year ended 31 December
HE+-H=1+—BHItEE
2022 2021
BRI HF B —F
Note Us$’000 Us$'000
M EE F= FE
Revenue W 2 5 451,007 382,361
Cost of sales HE A 21 (407,658) (321,988)
Gross profit EFI 43,349 60,373
Selling and distribution expenses HE RDIHES 21 (24,566) (23,121)
Administrative expenses THRAZ 21 (22,118) (23,905)
Other gains- net Hham — 358 20 219 1,635
Operating (loss)/profit K (B51R) (3.116) 14,982
Finance income A 398 569
Finance costs L H (951) (336)
Finance (costs)/income — net B (Zd) /A
— 358 22 (553) 233
Share of post-tax loss of an associate e — R E AR
IR B AsIE 10 (528) (201)
(Loss)/profit before income tax FRERISIAAT (B518)
i Fl (4,197) 15,014
Income tax expense FrigMmx 23 (187) (3,982)
(Loss)/profit for the year EE (B518) HH (4,384) 11,032
(Loss)/profit attributable to: LT & A E (B538)
=
Owners of the Company KATEBA (4,386) 11,014
Non-controlling interest R = 2 18
(4,384) 11,032
(Loss)/earnings per share for (loss)/ ERTFEB ANEMLZ
profit attributable to the owners £E BH) miz
of the Company during the year gk (&8 B
(expressed in US cents per share) (A ZREWHT)
Basic (loss)/earnings per share SREXS (518) EF 25 (0.29) 0.72
Diluted (loss)/earnings per share SR#E (58 B 25 (0.29) 0.72

The above consolidated income statement should be read in itz &R REERBBAME— RIS
conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

meZElER
Year ended 31 December
BEE+-B=+—HLEE
2022 2021
Us$°000 Us$’000
F%E7T FET
(Loss)/profit for the year TEE (B518) HF (4,384) 11,032
Other comprehensive (loss)/income: Hthz2m (5B518) A -
Item that may be reclassified to BB EEm ZEH
profit or loss
Currency translation differences [ERZRE (3.449) 907
Other comprehensive (loss)/income TEERREREMEE BB18)
for the year, net of tax WA (3,449) 907
Total comprehensive (loss)/income TEER@ (B5E) WAL
for the year (7,833) 11,939
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for UTF&SEEREERDE (5518)
the year attributable to: WA 4EEE
— Owners of the Company —ARREHEBEA (7,835) 11,921
— Non-controlling interest — IR 2 18
Total comprehensive (loss)/income TEERE (B58) WA REE
for the year (7,833) 11,939

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should Lk it 4z & 2 B UK & 7 FE # [F 48 B MY 52 —
be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. BB o
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

mAEmE2ER

Attributable to owners of the Company

EYNGE PN
Non-
Share Share  Exchange Merger  Statutory  Retained controlling
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve  earnings Total interest Total equity

Bx  RINEE EREHE
Us§000 Us§'000 Us§'000
TR TR TR

A EERE  REERY |5t JEEREE  REELE
Us§'000 US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 US§'000 Us§'000
TE7 TET TE7T TE7T TE7T TE7

Balance at 1 January 2021 RZE_—-F-F-Hz

i 15,228 47,358 9,876 79,994 828 147,776 301,060 210 301,270
Comprehensive income 2ERA
Profit for the year KEEER - - - - - 11,014 11,014 18 11,032
Other comprehensive income Hit2ERA
Currency translation differences ERZER - - 907 - - - 907 - 907
Total comprehensive income 2EMALE - - 907 - - 11,014 11,921 18 11,939
Total transactions with owners BERAZBR5E
Dividends (Note 24) &S (k24 - - - - - (11,192) (11,192) - (11,192)
Reallocation of statutory reserve ENARAEHE - - - - 46 (46) - - -
Balance at 31 December 2021 HZEZ-F+ZA=+-H

b1 15,228 47,358 10,783 79,994 874 147,552 301,789 228 302,017
Balance at 1 January 2022 RZ8Z°F-F-H

28R 15,228 47,358 10,783 79,994 874 147,552 301,789 228 302,017
Comprehensive loss 2EFH
Loss for the year TEEHH - - - - - (4,386) (4,386) 2 (4,384)
Other comprehensive loss Hit2EESH
Currency translation differences ERER - - (3,449) - - - (3,449) - (3,449)
Total comprehensive loss 2EFRLE - - (3,449) - - (4,386) (7,835) 2 (7,833)
Total transactions with owners ARBAZERFE
Dividends (Note 24) R (5i24) - - - - - (2,466) (2,466) - (2,466)
Reallocation of statutory reserve BNARATHE - - - - 27 (27) - - -
Balance at 31 December 2022 RZBZZE+-RA=+-H

24t 15,228 47,358 7334 79,994 901 140673 291,488 230 291,718

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

AR S B AR PR R AR A Y A — 6

CEE
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

iﬁ.%/}lli%‘%

n‘7|'\

Year ended 31 December

BE+_BA=+—HLFE

2022 2021
bl 3 %
Note US$’000 Us$’000
M 52 FE7T FET
Cash flows from operating activities  &EFEFHEE
RERE
Cash (used in)/generated from % TR EEZ
operations HE 29(a) (22,257) 31,846
Interest paid 2EFE (1,122) (469)
Income taxes paid BIRER (1.335) (6,505)
Net cash (used in)/generated from KESES) (FrA)
operating activities EEZREFE (24,714) 24,872
Cash flows from investing activities KEEHEEZ
RERE
Purchases of property, plant and EEME BREKRKE
equipment (11,390) (11,393)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEYE - HER
and equipment REZPERIE 29(a) 20 77
Purchases of intangible assets BEETEE 8 (20) (17)
Proceeds from disposal of short-term HERRRITER KR
bank deposits and pledged bank BIERIRITERZ
deposits FRiSRIE 1,075 20,742
Proceeds from disposal of structured HEEBMEIRITEMR
bank deposits ZFrigskia 2,527 5,455
Proceeds from return on structured bank 2R B4 4IRITER
deposits [El¥R Z FriS 18 58 145
Interest received B UH R 393 569
Net cash (used in)/generated from investing & &8 (FrA) EEX 2
activities HEFEE (7,337) 15,578
Cash flows from financing activities RMEEHEEZ
RERE
Dividends paid BKRE 24 (2,466) (11,192)
Proceeds from bank borrowings fETTF*E\FﬁﬁTA 29(b) 131,036 73,424
Repayment of bank borrowings EERITEE 29(b) (111,498) (79,487)
Principal elements of lease payment MENMHRZ AT 29(b) (644) (375)
Net cash generated from/(used in) MEEBEL, FTR) Z
financing activities HE 34 16,428 (17,630)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and HEKRREEEY GRL
cash equivalents IR RE (15,623) 22,820
Cash and cash equivalents REVZAETRRES
at beginning of year = 14 66,136 42,359
Exchange (losses)/gains on cash RERREEEYMZER
and cash equivalents (B518) W (2,703) 957
Cash and cash equivalents RERZHAERIREE
at end of year B4 14 47,810 66,136
The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in kit 4z & I8 £ 7% 8 & FE & [5) 48 B3 M 5= — 6
conjunction with the accompanying notes. =
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR MR M

GENERAL INFORMATION

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited (“the Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are principally engaged in
the manufacture and sale of fermentation-based food additives,
biochemical products and cassava starch-based industrial
products including modified starch, glucose syrup, Monosodium
Glutamate (“MSG"), soda and glutamic acid (“GA"). The
products are sold to food distributors, international trading
companies, and manufacturers of food, paper, textiles, and
chemical products in Vietnam, other ASEAN member countries,
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), Japan, Taiwan, and
several European countries.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman lIslands. The address of its registered office is P.O. Box
10008, Willow House, Cricket Square, Grand Cayman KY1-
1001, Cayman Islands.

The Company is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

These financial statements are presented in United States
dollars (“US$°000"), unless otherwise stated.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated. The financial statements are
for the group consisting of the Company and its subsidiaries.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) and
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance Cap.622. The consolidated financial statements
have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
as modified by the revaluation of non-current liabilities
and plan assets of defined benefit plan and the structured
bank deposits which are measured at fair value.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in Note 4.
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Cayman KY1-1001, Cayman Islands ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR M IR R MR

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

N

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(a)  Amendments to standards and accounting
guidelines adopted by the Group

The Group has applied the following amendments
to standards and accounting guideline which are
mandatory for the Company for the first time for
the financial year beginning on 1 January 2022:

Annual improvements Annual improvements

project to HKFRSs 2018-2020
(Amendments) (amendments)

HKAS 16 Property, plant and
(Amendments) equipment: proceeds

before intended use

HKAS 37 Onerous contracts — cost to
(Amendments) fulfilling a contract

HKFRS 3 Reference to conceptual
(Amendments) framework

HKFRS 16 Covid-19-related rent
(Amendments) concessions beyond 2021

AG 5 (Revised) Revised accounting
guideline 5 merger
accounting for common

control combinations

The adoption of the above amendments to
standards and accounting guideline did not have
any material impact on the current period or any
prior periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR MR M

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 KUEBERFETHEEHNE (@)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(b)

early adopted.

2.1 REEE @
The following new standards, amendments to (b)
standards, interpretation and practice statement
(together refers as “Amendments”) have been
issued, but are not effective for the financial year
beginning on 1 January 2022 and have not been

UTABEGENRZ-ZZTZZ
F—A—HBHHBRZHBEE
18 AR AR TR R IR AU ER AN A
A NERZETEA - RER
EEEER| (BB BT ©

Effective for annual
periods beginning

on or after

R BEARZEFE
ZEERRER

HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice

Statement 2 (Amendments)

BB ENE IR

EBMBREERIFXER

F25% (BT A)
HKAS 8 (Amendments)

EBGERFESE (E5T4)

HKAS 12 (Amendments)

EABGTERE 1298 (B5T4)

HKFRS17

BEHBMBREEAE 175

HKFRS17 (Amendments)

BHBMBRESENH 175
(1B5T4)

HKFRS17 (Amendments)

EBMBREENE175E
(5T %)

Disclosure of accounting policies
(amendments)

TR HRIKE (BFT4)

Definition of accounting estimates
(amendments)

gt E S (BT

Deferred tax related to assets and
liabilities arising from a single
transaction (amendments)

FEE—RXBNEERERZ
MHRAEEIRIE (B 5T 45)

Insurance contracts

REEL

Amendments to HKFRS 17

BEBMBMEENE175 (BETE)

Initial application of HKFRS 17 and
HKFRS 9 — comparative information

BRI E B BREEANFE 7R
BEHEPBREENFIR—LLRER

1 January 2023

—E-=F—HF—H

1 January 2023

“Z_=%—F—H
1 January 2023

—_E_=—A—H
1 January 2023
—_E”_=%—A—H
1 January 2023
—2==£-F—H

1 January 2023

_E”_=F—F—H
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (continued)

(b)

The following new standards, amendments to
standards, interpretation and practice statement
(together refers as "Amendments”) have been
issued, but are not effective for the financial year
beginning on 1 January 2022 and have not been
early adopted. (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR M IR R MR

2

RREERTIBESHTHREE (B

21 REEE (@)
b) UTHEBEGERZIZEZZ
F-B—HHBRZHMBEE
1R E R TRRIRATER AN 2 F
R NERZETER - RER
EEEER (FEA MEFTA) ©

(&)

Effective for annual
periods beginning

on or after
RTFBEARZEFE
ZEEBREEX

HKAS 1 (Amendments)

SR ENFE I (B4
HKAS 1 (Amendments)

SR ENF IS (B4
HKFRS 16 (Amendments)

ERAVHERESENFE 1658
(CHEN)
HK Int 5 (Revised)

ERREBST (B51F)

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
(Amendments)

ERMBREENF105ERK

SR ERFH285E
(CHEN)

Classification of liabilities as current or
non-current (amendments)

BEEDBRARIIERE (BFTH)

Non-current liabilities with covenants
(amendments)

MM IERE AR (B5T4)

Lease liability in a sale and leaseback
(amendments)

ERBELDMNEERRE (BFT4)

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (Revised)
presentation of financial statements
— classification by the borrower of a
term loan that contains a repayment on
demand clause (HK Int 5 (Revised))

EHRREST (BFTX) BFHRERZ
EHN-EEAHGSRERBEKEX
ZEHERZDE (EBREESR
(1B5T%))

Sale or contribution of assets between
an investor and its associate or joint
venture (amendments)

KREEHHEBERNTHIAERLEZEN
BEHESHFE (BT4)

1 January 2024

—E_MFE—F—H
1 January 2024

—E_HmHHE—RB—H
1 January 2024

_ZE_ME—HF—H

1 January 2024

—E-WFE—HB—H

To be determined

HEE

The directors of the Company have assessed the
financial impact on the Group of the adoption of
the above Amendments. There are no Amendments
that are not yet effective and that would be
expected to have a material impact on the Group
in the future reporting periods and on foreseeable
future transactions. The Group intends to adopt the
Amendments when they become effective.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR MR M

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 GRUNEERIBEBREE (B
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting 2.2 AHERIMEREEE
2.2.1 Business combinations 22.1 EHEEH
The acquisition method of accounting is used to AEBRKBWBE AR
account for all business combinations, regardless BEBESHAR MFmKEE
of whether equity instruments or other assets are RATHFHEMEE -7UE
acquired. The consideration transferred for the —ERBRBAMERNRE
acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the: BiE .
e fair values of the assets transferred . Fre 2 EENATE
. liabilities incurred to the former owners of the . WU FERIER AFR
acquired business EENEaR
e equity interests issued by the Group e  AEEBBTKRE
e fair value of any asset or liability resulting e HAREBEZHELEME
from a contingent consideration arrangement, AEEHEBEBNAF
and B &
e fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in . M8 A BMERI TR T 1E
the subsidiary. B AFE -
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and B TS S O B P WK BE B9 BT a8
contingent liabilities assumed in a business NEERFMAENEERK
combination are, with limited exceptions, measured ReE YULRKEBBRNA
initially at their fair values at the acquisition FEs = D BAIIMERER
date. The Group recognises any non-controlling G o A £ B AR 41 Bl W B
interest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-by- AT EDNIEERRE SR
acquisition basis either at fair value or at the non- WHEEBRBARNEEFE
controlling interest’s proportionate share of the BRI RER R EE RN
acquired entity’s net identifiable assets. ERIEFER AR o
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred. Wt B AE A R AN 1E 2 R PRS2 8 o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR M IR R MR

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 HGUNBERTIEFGHBEHME (&)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting 2.2 SHEAMERE (&)
(continued)
2.2.1 Business combinations (continued) 22.1 #FBEG (8B)

The excess of the:
. consideration transferred,

o amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquired entity, and

o acquisition-date fair value of any previous
equity interest in the acquired entity over
the fair value of the net identifiable assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those
amounts are less than the fair value of the net
identifiable assets of the business acquired,
the difference is recognised directly in profit
or loss as a bargain purchase.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration
is deferred, the amounts payable in the future are
discounted to their present value as at the date
of exchange. The discount rate used is the entity’s
incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which
a similar borrowing could be obtained from an
independent financier under comparable terms and
conditions. Contingent consideration is classified
either as equity or a financial liability. Amounts
classified as a financial liability are subsequently
remeasured to fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR MR M

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 GUNBEERTIEFEHBEHME (&)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting 2.2 SHEFMESRE (&)
(continued)
2.2.2 Subsidiaries 222 WEARE
Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured WEBABSAXEEHEES

entities) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity where the group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power to direct
the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the group. They are deconsolidated
from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the Group.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and
equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in
the consolidated income statement, statement of
comprehensive income, statement of changes in
equity and balance sheet respectively.

2.2.3 Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control or joint
control. This is generally the case where the Group
holds between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for using
the equity method of accounting (see (iii) below),
after initially being recognised at cost.

ERENENERE (BEER
MHER) ~WAEEAKEN
ZEZ2HEBRZTEZMOKREA
SRR IR FIEREEN
TEZERNIHUTLESR
RO R QIS BT A ER
oM B AR B EERREE
FHAEBEERELZELGS
fRo WA IEERELE
R Al

FERRBUBGERE
BEtH AR

REERG GEHREERRR
AEXZZAREHKEHETF
Hif-RIFERXZIREDE
REELRAEBEZEE T
REFBETEHHE -WERQ
AZEHRERCERE
B LR S NEEFERM
2K

WEAREEREEPHIEF
TR D RN e R
EERER EZE2HRKE
ERERTERZI-

223 HBEAF

BEABEMALTEEHE
BEEARRENEEENER
HEZEHEZBERE-BEE
EEFAH20%ES0%RER
R IR EMBER RSP R
AR REME AR ZK
BRI g sE (BT X))
N2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR M IR R MR

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 HREERFETHBEHRE (B)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting 2.2 SHEAMERE (&)

(continued)

2.2.4 Fquity method 2.2.4 #wm%k

Under the equity method of accounting, the
investments are initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share
of the post-acquisition profits or losses of the
investee in profit or loss, and the Group’s share
of movements in other comprehensive income
of the investee in other comprehensive income.
Dividends received or receivable from associates are
recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount of
the investment.

Where the Group’s share of losses in an equity-
accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest
in the entity, including any other unsecured long-
term receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or
made payments on behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the
group and its associates are eliminated to the
extent of the Group's interest in these entities.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred. Accounting policies of equity-
accounted investees have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

The Group determines at each reporting date
whether there is any objective evidence that the
investment in the associate is impaired. If this
is the case, the Group calculates the amount
of impairment as the difference between the
recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying
value and recognises the amount adjacent to ‘share
of post-tax loss of an associate’ in the consolidated
income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR MR M

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.3

2.4

2.5

Separate financial statements of the Company
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost is adjusted to reflect changes in
consideration arising from contingent consideration
amendments. Cost also includes direct attributable costs
of investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted
for by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving dividends from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income
of the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or
if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net
assets including goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-
maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments, has
been identified as the Executive Directors of the Group.

Foreign currency translation

(a)  Functional and presentation currency
[tems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (“the functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in US$, which is the Company’s
functional and the Group’s presentation currency.

2

GREERTIBEHHREE (B

2.3

2.4

2.5

FARZBWUMFBIRE
RMBABZRERMAERRET
IRoRBAEFHBE  URBREAR
RREBEIMEEZREES K
FTEREERBGZREMSE
BRABZEERERRNREWKIE
Wi B EEARR

iR EBBHEARTEIRR S
Bz2EBRARQE NHEBIME
BRARBEZIROEBBERKER
ZREE (BEBE) REEMBER
RZIREE AERBRIEAR
ZREWRDRERYAMREET
AERE

SERERE
EENMZERAAAREHRTEE
EEAREZALE2HR —R-8F
DRERMTEEEDERE
BEERARECEANAETERR
TES-

ShEsinE

(@) IDERZHEHE
FEESERZMBREMN
BEZEBR DRZERE
BTz IBRERIEZEHE
(THREE® ) StB R ER
BREUERB ZHNEGT
REEEZEREBEETE
e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR M IR R MR

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 HREERFETHBEHRE (B)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.5 SMNEBRE (8

2.5 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(b)

(c)

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign

(b)

X5 RAGER

SINER Z R B RE A
EREZAEEERZRTE
KMHEBEGE - F L3
PHEERBEREXRRH
SNEAEZEREERAER
MESZIMNEW TS EE > 19
RiEEWmE R AR R
HERBLEFESEGERERR

currencies are recognised in the consolidated ENHAIREERFREN
income statement, except when deferred in equity £ palc 3N

as qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net
investment hedges.

All foreign exchange gains and losses are presented
in the consolidated income statement within ‘other
gains — net’.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

(c)

PRAESNERBEREGRTEE
B THAthil s — %8R 2
Bl e

HEEHRE]

FEEFMBEERE (HPIEE
HEEFEBRRBEEZERE
BRZER IKEHERE
BA-—BZIEER HER
MFHBRRABUTHEER
BEREREE:

-~ assets and liabilities for each balance sheet - BEEEABRZEE
presented are translated at the closing rate at rREBHRRZEES
the date of that balance sheet; BREEBZWHER

wHE;

- income and expenses for each income - BEREXRZWVARX
statement are translated at average exchange HHERRBRTEHEXR

rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of

BT IHERSR
REREBEMRMERSH

the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, ZIRITEXEMBRZER
in which case income and expenses are BB ARRTSH
translated at the rate on the dates of the ZERFTHEILFWAM
transactions); and T &
- all resulting exchange differences are - FE&EZFBEERZER
recognised in other comprehensive income. HEHEMEEmRARE
= o

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated

WEEBNEREMELEZRE
BRATERAE HRERZ
BHIBREZEEREBBRRRE

at the closing rate. Exchange differences arising are WNEHEB ZERITHE FRE
recognised in other comprehensive income. SCEREREEEMEEU
AHFESR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR MR M

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.6

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, except for construction-
in-progress, is stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged in the consolidated
income statement during the financial period in which
they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their
costs to their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, as follows:

— Properties 15-50 years
— Plant and machinery 10-20 years
— Motor vehicles 5-8 years
— Office equipment 5-8 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.8).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount
and are recognised within ‘other gains — net’, in the
consolidated income statement.

Construction-in-progress, comprising capital expenditure
on buildings and plant where the construction work has
not been completed, is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. No depreciation is provided for
construction-in-progress.

2

GREERTIBEHHREE (B

2.6

ME BB R=RE

ME - BB K& FERIRZERN
IR FE B AL AR R Bt T EE R R AR
BEEIR BEERABEEER
RUEEIE B RIS -

RETHEEREMZRREEF
HWAREERARER BEET &M
SABEBZMEAR  FERERZ
A AEE 2 IRE B 3 %
—EETEE WER -NEEHK
BE SRS ONREELUHE
B-MAHMEERFRERER 1
REEZHBEBABR RE5 K
RAXZHE-

ME-BERKRKBHINEDNBE
MEEEHGHUERFHRERE
DEEREFREEFE H#IIWT:

— 15-50%
— R R 14 28 10-20E
—[8 5-84E
—WRELE 5-84F

BEZFFHEERTERAFEHEAN
BEREMRTUBHRBE (WNE
A o

i 5 72 PR T 1B B 51 B9 BT Uk Bl 7k 3R
AR QB E YRR E B R 3L 23
MEHEAREIREE (fE2.8) o

HEZRBHEBRBIEMEANR
HEFLBEMERE L7 ALE W
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AR M IR R MR

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 HREERFETHBEHRE (B)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
2.7 Intangible assets 27 BWEE
(a)  Gooadwill (a BZE

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries
represents the excess of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree
over the fair value of the identified net assets
acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated
to each of the cash-generating units ("CGUs"),
or groups of CGUs, expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination. Each unit or group of
units to which the goodwill is allocated represents
the lowest level within the entity at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the operating
segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken
annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate a potential impairment.
The carrying value of goodwill is compared to the
recoverable amount, which is the higher of value
in use and the fair value less costs to sell. Any
impairment is recognised immediately as an expense

AERBEBENBARRES
TSR AE RS
Z AR IR AR i WA e S Al
RS Z RAEZ U
BEMZATEBHRKE
NERNEEFELATEZ
MER-

RETRENS REHS
HPWBEZEEDDRER
PREREHIBRMEZS
BEREEEM (THRNRESE
fiy) SRERERR S EMAER - &
EnkEmEzBUN—HEE
UABEMANBEEERS
BZRBERE BHEREED
ME@ETER-

HMESEETRERS  TE
REFEAHHRABRAEE
A BEIRIBERS > fFH B4R
mins - BmEREEETWE
T8 BEREEEQATER
HEREZRSE) (FHLERK-
EfFRERNRRER RS B

and is not subsequently reversed. HBFg#EBE -

(b)  Trademarks and license (b) EIERER
Separately acquired trademarks and the license, BEERERFERAFHZEIL
which have finite useful lives, are carried at cost W B 2 7 AR T b BR 32 B AR

less accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-
line method to allocate the cost of trademarks and

St BRI EBIEANK
WILFMBEMASE RS
BRERBEBANRBRERNEE

license over their estimated useful lives of 6 to 10 +EGH A FERFERRET
years. PEce
(c)  Computer software (c EBASEH

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalised
on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and

BANBREKGERRER
BRERZEERMGFSIE

bring to use the specific software. These costs are MR AERC - BRAKASIZE
amortised over their estimated useful lives of 5 TRl R A EE AR L R 8 o

years.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.8

2.9

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life — for example,
goodwill — are not subject to amortisation and are
tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject
to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs to sell and its value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other
than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed
for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting
date.

Financial assets

2.9.1 Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair
value through profit or loss, and

. those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Group’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

They are included in current assets, except for
amounts that are settled or expected to be settled
more than 12 months after the end of the reporting
period. These are classified as non-current assets.
The Group’s financial assets at amortised cost
comprise trade and other receivables (Note 2.11),
amounts due from related parties, short-term bank
deposits and pledged bank deposits and cash and
cash equivalents (Note 2.12) in the consolidated
balance sheet. The Group's financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss comprise structured
bank deposits.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and
only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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AR M IR R MR

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 GUNEERTIBFEHBRBE (B

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.9 Financial assets (continued) 29 MBBEE @

2.9.2 Recognition and derecognition 2.9.2 HESR R AR LFHEST
Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets HMBEEEREENRXSH
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which (MAEFEAREBEERLHE
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. ZEEHH BR -MBEE
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights RN BEEREREN
to receive cash flows from the financial assets have HAERIEEERLTER
expired or have been transferred and the Group has EEZHEBEENADD AR
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of T [a] ¥R BF 4% |EFE 5T
ownership.
2.9.3 Measurement 2.9.35t&
At initial recognition, the Group measures a RS HIAE > REERRM
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of BEEZRATFESRM (7
a financial asset not at fair value through profit BELFEAFESAER
or loss ("FVPL"), transaction costs that are directly (MEAFEESAER)) K
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. BUBEEEREEZRS
A EMEEE-

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments BEIAZBEFERER
depends on the Group's business model EREBREEZEBERAR
for managing the asset and the cash flow FEZREEREREME -

characteristics of the asset.

. Amortised cost: Assets that are held for . B A A UUER
collection of contractual cash flows where EHRRERE (RER
those cash flows represent solely payments EREEAEINAEEE
of principal and interest are measured at RFER) 2 EEREH
amortised cost. A gain or loss on a debt ARG & - B EREH
investment that is subsequently measured at BY 7 51 2 R 3t JE R
amortised cost and is not part of a hedging HR—BRZEBLREZ
relationship is recognised in the consolidated KR BERZEER
statements of comprehensive income when IHEDIREFRES
the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest EENERAER &
income from these financial assets is included EMBEEZMNERA
in finance income using the effective interest FERBRAIEES AR
rate method. BUTA ©

. FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria . BAFESAEHE R
for amortised cost or at fair value through HeEgEl Az ZA
other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) are FEFAEMZEKRA
measured at FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt (T AFEFTAHAM
investment that is subsequently measured 2EBA BEZE
at FVPL is recognised in profit or loss and ENRAFESAER
presented net within other gains/(losses) in FE-HEBERAFES
the period in which it arises. ABRAEZEBERRE

Z W RS SRR 1B A

RoMAEELBHENE
iz, (B518) LS
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR MR M

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.9 Financial assets (continued)
2.9.4 Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its
debt instrument carried at amortised cost. The
impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk. Note 3.1(b) details how the Group
determines whether there has been a significant

increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the
simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which
requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised

from initial recognition of the receivables.

For other receivables and deposits carried at
amortised cost, the Group adopt three-stages
approach to assess the impairment. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether there has

been a significant increase in credit risk.

When measuring expected credit loss, the Group
considers historical default rate, current market
condition and forward-looking information.

2.10 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. The cost of finished goods and work-
in-progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads (based on
normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make

the sale.

Consumables are included within inventories and stated

at cost, using the weighted average method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR M IR R MR

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.1

2.12

2.13

2.14

2.15

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment. If collection of trade and other receivables is
expected in one year or less, they are classified as current
assets.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held
at call with banks and other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or
less.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. Trade and other payables
are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within
one year or less.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated income statement
over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR MR M

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.16

2.17

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowings costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense for the year is the tax payable
on the current period’s taxable income based on
the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction
adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax
losses.

(a)  Current income tax
The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the Company, its subsidiaries and associate
operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR M IR R MR

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 HUEBERTIEFHHRME (@)

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.17 Current and deferred income tax (continued) 2.17 EHRIEIEFRFR (&)

(b)  Deferred income tax (b) BEEFER

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the BEEFMEREBEREMNE
liability method, on temporary differences arising ERBBZREHEEEES
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and BB RZIREEMEZY
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial RERELZEEE -AM

statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition
of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction other than
a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted
or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting
period and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be
available to utilise those temporary differences and
losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised
for temporary differences between the carrying
amount and tax bases of investments in foreign
operations where the Company is able to control
the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR MR M

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 KUEBERFETHEEHNE (@)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.17 Current and deferred income tax (continued) 2.17 ERBIRIEFREIR (B)

(b)  Deferred income tax (continued) (b) BEFEH (#B)
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when EEREBESERABBERH

there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred
tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.
Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset

1RG5 58 Bl B0 1T Z R F A B AR
MABERGEERIEN B
ZEBRIERIBEFITER—
MBEBEBRNBERT 59

where the entity has a legally enforceable right ERIEHE B IEE E KRR
to offset and intends either to settle on a net HaEESBEAE UK ERG
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability HMITZRAETEBEMYE

simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in the
consolidated income statement, except to the
extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In
this case, the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

2.18 Employee benefits

(a)

Pension obligations

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan
under which the Group pays fixed contributions
into a separate entity. The Group has no legal or
constructive obligations to pay further contributions
if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay
all employees the benefits relating to employee
service in the current and prior periods. A defined
benefit plan is a pension plan that is not a defined
contribution plan.

Typically defined benefit plans define an amount
of pension benefit that an employee will receive
on retirement, usually dependent on one or
more factors such as age, years of service and
compensation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR M IR R MR

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

RREERTIBESHTHREE (B

2.18 Employee benefits (continued) 2.18 EE®RH (&

(a)

Pension obligations (continued)

The liability recognised in the consolidated balance
sheet in respect of defined benefit pension
plans is the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the end of the reporting period. The
present value of the defined benefit obligation is
determined by discounting the estimated future
cash outflows using interest rates of high quality
corporate bonds that are denominated in the
currency in which the benefits will be paid, and
that have terms to maturity approximating to the
terms of the related pension obligation. In countries
where there is no deep market in such bonds, the
market rates on government bonds are used.

The current service cost of a defined benefit plan,
recognised in the consolidated income statement in
employee benefit expense, except where included
in the cost of an asset, reflects the increase in the
defined benefit obligation resulting from employee
service in the current year, benefit changes,
curtailments and settlements.

Past-service costs are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays
contributions to publicly or privately administered
pension insurance plans on a mandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no
further payment obligations once the contributions
have been paid. The contributions are recognised as
employee benefit expense when they are due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR MR M

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

GREERTIBEHHREE (B

2.18 Employee benefits (continued) 2.18 EE®EH (&

(b)  Termination benefits (b) AIEFEF
Termination benefits are payable when employment EXxEETEBERRAKHE
is terminated by the Group before the normal HR®KItEER A5 EE
retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts BEERETEBERMIMEERH
voluntary redundancy in exchange for these mAE R IERABEZ T
benefits. The Group recognises termination benefits AEBTEAEHRAAELLE
when it is demonstrably committed to a termination ARiRHE—EFMNENXS
and when the entity has a detailed formal plan to BRIFRERENER (RF
terminate the employment of current employees BEIR AT RE) B> FEERAR IR
without possibility of withdrawal. In the case of an FeoiRE—TBEEOURE R
offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the FEER AR LB 2 TaiRE
termination benefits are measured based on the MERMEANEE AMTE-
number of employees expected to accept the offer. THRENEREBETZE
Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the BXANEANRAIRE
end of the reporting period are discounted to their
present value.

(c)  Bonus plans (c) JEAL:Z)
The Group recognises a liability and an expense FEBRBE—AR (EETF
for bonuses, based on a formula that takes BEEEZRAABIREEMN
into consideration the profit attributable to the wA) > MIEAL R aE KA
Company’s shareholders after certain adjustments. Yo RERERGHOREN AT
The Group recognises a provision where BB EE T EERETE
contractually obliged or where there is a past Ho
practice that has created a constructive obligation.

(d)  Employee leave entitlements (d) ESEZ/RH

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees.
Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.
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AR M IR R MR

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.19 Provisions

Provisions for environmental restoration, restructuring
costs, and legal claims are recognised when: the Group
has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount
has been reliably estimated. Restructuring provisions
comprise lease termination penalties and employee
termination payments. Provisions are not recognised for
future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision
due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

2.20 Revenue and other income recognition

(a)  Sales of goods

Sales are recognised when control of the product
has transferred, being when the product are
delivered, and there is no unfulfilled obligation
that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the
product. The risks of obsolescence and loss have
been transferred to the customer upon delivery or
the Group has objective evidence that all criteria for
acceptance have been satisfied.

Revenue from the sale of goods is based on the
price specified in the sales contracts. No element of
financing is deemed present as the sales are made
with a credit term from cash on delivery to 60 days,
which is consistent with market practice.

Receivable is recognised when the product is
delivered as this is the point in time when the
consideration is unconditional, which only the
passage of time is required before the payment is
due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR MR M

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.20 Revenue and other income recognition (continued)

2.21

(a)  Sales of goods (continued)
Contract liabilities
Contract liabilities primarily relate to the deposits or
payments received in advance for sales of goods not
yet delivered to customers. Revenue is recognised
when goods are delivered to customers.

(b) Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method. When a
loan and receivable is impaired, the Group reduces
the carrying amount to its recoverable amount,
being the estimated future cash flow discounted at
the original effective interest rate of the instrument,
and continues unwinding the discount as interest
income. Interest income on impaired loan and
receivables is recognised using the original effective
interest rate.

(c)  Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.

Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased
asset is available for use by the Group.

Liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on
a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net
present value of the fixed payments.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement
of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in the
Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used,
being the rate that the individual lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset
of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment with similar terms, security and
conditions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR M IR R MR

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.21 Leases (continued)

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

o where possible, uses recent third-party financing
received by the individual lessee as a starting point,
adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions
since third party financing was received

. uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free
interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held
by the Group, which does not have recent third

party financing, and

° makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term,

country, currency and security.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss
over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability

for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the

following:

° the amount of the initial measurement of lease

liability; and

3 any lease payments made at or before the

commencement date.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a

straight-line basis.

Land use rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any. Cost represents consideration paid for the rights to
use the land on which various plants and buildings are
situated for 50 years. Amortisation of land use rights
is calculated on a straight-line basis over the period of

leases.

Payments associated with short-term leases and all leases
of low-value assets are recognized on a straight-line basis
as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are
leases with a lease term of 12 months or less. Low-value
assets comprise IT equipment and small items of office

furniture.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR MR M

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.22

2.23

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognized as a liability in the Group’s and Company’s
financial statements in the period in which the dividends
are approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors,
where appropriate.

Dividends proposed or declared after the reporting period
but before the consolidated financial statements are
authorised for issue, are disclosed as a non-adjusting
event and are not recognised as a liability at the end of
the reporting period.

Government grants
Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with all
attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the consolidated income statement over
the period necessary to match them with the costs
that they are intended to compensate. If the grants do
not relate to any specific expenditure incurred and all
attached condition were complied by the Group, they
are recognised under “other gains — net” in consolidated
income statement upon receipt of the grants.
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AR M IR R MR

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk and
cash flow and fair value interest rate risks), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group’s financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by a central treasury
department (group treasury) under policies approved
by the board of directors. Group treasury identifies and
evaluates financial risks in close co-operation with the
Group’s operating units. The board provides principles
for overall risk management, as well as policies covering
specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate
risk, credit risk and investment of excess liquidity.

(a)  Market risk

(i) Foreign exchange risk
The Group operates internationally with most
of the transactions denominated in US$,
Vietnam Dong and Renminbi. The Group is
exposed to foreign exchange risk primarily
through future commercial transactions,
recognised assets and liabilities and net
investments in foreign operations that
are denominated in a currency other than
the functional currency of the operating
subsidiaries of the Group. The Group does
not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
However, management of the Group monitors
foreign exchange exposure and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)
Market risk (continued)

(a)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

At 31 December 2022, for the Group’s
subsidiaries whose functional currency is
Us$, if the Vietnam Dong had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against the US$ with all
other variables held constant, post-tax loss
(2021: post tax profit) for the year would
have been US$750,000 higher/lower (2021:
US$1,362,000 lower/higher) , mainly as a
result of foreign exchange losses/gains on
translation of trade and other receivables,
cash and cash equivalents and trade and
other payables denominated in Vietnam
Dong.

At 31 December 2022, for the Group’s
subsidiaries whose functional currency is
Renminbi, if the US$ had strengthened/
weakened by 5% against the Renminbi with
all other variables held constant, post-tax loss
(2021: post tax profit) for the year would have
been US$4,000 higher/lower (2021:US$2,000
lower/higher), mainly as a result of foreign
exchange losses/gains on translation of cash
and cash equivalents denominated in US$.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)
Market risk (continued)

(a)

(ii)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risks

As the Group has no significant interest-
bearing assets apart from bank balances, the
Group’s income and operating cash flows
are substantially independent of changes in
market interest rates.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group
exposure to interest rate risk related
primarily to variable rate bank borrowings
of US$59,621,000 (2021: variable rate bank
borrowings of US$35,314,000 and fixed rate
bank borrowings of US$4,994,000).

Borrowings issued at variable rates expose
the Group to cash flow interest-rate risk,
and borrowings issued at fixed rates expose
the Group to fair value interest rate risk. As
the tenure of the fixed-rate bank borrowings
range from one to two years, the directors
consider the exposures of present value
interest rate return to be insignificant. The
Group does not have an interest rate hedging
policy. However, management of the Group
monitors interest rate exposure and will
consider hedging significant interest rate
exposure should the need arise.

At 31 December 2022, if interest rates on
variable rate borrowings had been 50 basis
points higher/lower with all other variables
held constant, post-tax loss (2021: post
tax profit) for the year would have been
US$253,000 higher/lower (2021: US$150,000
lower/higher), mainly as a result of higher/
lower interest expense on these borrowings.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)  Credit risk
Credit risk arises from bank deposits and bank
balances, trade receivables, other receivables and
amounts due from related parties.

(if)

Risk management

The carrying amount of bank deposits and
bank balances, trade receivables, other
receivables and amounts due from related
parties included in the consolidated balance
sheet represents the Group's maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to these
financial assets.

The Group has policies in place to ensure
that sales of products are made to customers
with appropriate credit histories. The Group
has policies to assess the credit quality of the
customer, taking into account its financial
position, past experience and other factors.
Individual risk limits are set based on internal
or external ratings. The utilisation of credit
limits is regularly monitored.

For bank deposits and bank balances,
the Group only uses banks and financial
institutions with good reputation. As at
31 December 2022 and 2021, all the bank
balances as detailed in Note 14 are held in
major financial institutions, which are either
state owned or with high credit quality.
Management believes that the credit risk for
bank deposits and bank balances is minimal.

Impairment of financial assets

While structured bank deposits, short-term
bank deposits, pledged bank deposits and
cash and cash equivalents are also subject to
the impairment requirements of HKFRS 9, the
identified impairment loss was immaterial.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

(b)

(ii)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Trade receivables

The Group applies the simplified approach to
provide for expected credit losses prescribed
by HKFRS 9, which permits the use of
the lifetime expected losses for all trade
receivables.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade
receivables have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics and the days
past due.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has
concentration of credit risk as 45% (2021:
40%) of its trade receivables were the
five (2021: five) largest trade receivables,
which are mainly reputable corporations.
Considering the track record of regular
repayment of trade receivables based on
the Group’s experience with respect to the
collection of these receivables, the directors
are of the opinion that the risk of default by
these customers is not material.

In respect of trade receivables, the Group
has policies in place to ensure that the
sales of goods are made to customers
with appropriate credit history and the
Group performs credit evaluations of these
counterparties and customers. The credit
periods of the majority of these trade
receivables are within 60 days and largely
comprise amounts receivable from business
customers. Given the track record of regular
repayment of receivables from customers, the
directors are of the opinion that the risk of
default by customers is not significant.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

(b)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Trade receivables (continued)

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring expected credit losses
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for trade receivables.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade
receivables have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics and the days
past due.

The expected loss rates are based on the
payment profiles of sales over a period
of 36 months before 31 December 2022
and the corresponding historical credit
losses experienced within this period. The
historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect
current and forward-looking information on
macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of
the customers to settle the receivables. The
Group has identified the GDP in which it sells
its goods and services to be the most relevant
factors, and accordingly adjusts the historical
loss rates based on expected changes in these
factors.
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3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 WHBEKRERE @
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 MBEBER (&)
(b)  Credit risk (continued) (b) EEREE #)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (continued) (i HBEEZRE @)
Trade receivables (continued) FEUWL & 5 BRFR (#8)
On that basis, the loss allowance as at 31 FHEEELEL > RIZE
December 2022 and 2021 was determined __ERE_—%
as follows for both trade receivables and +ZA=+—HZEW
contract assets: BSRNEREHNEEZ
BHEBEHELETOT
More than
1-180 days  181-360 days 360 days
Current past due past due past due Total
ZEZZ bl 1 bl ki
31 December 2022 +-A=+-8 B 1Z180H 181E360H 8183608 Ait
Expected loss rate BHERE 0% 0.75% 3.54% 100%
Gross carrying amount MIRmEfE
- trade receivables (US$'000)  —EEWEZERR
(F%n) 30,872 2,812 339 356 34,379
Loss allowance (US$'000) EERfE (TZT) - 2 12 356 389
More than
1-180 days ~ 181-360 days 360 days
Current past due past due past due Total
ZEZ-F i b kil
31 December 2021 +-A=z+-8 I 1£180H 181£360H i81E360H At
Expected loss rate BHERE 0.01% 066%  NAXER 100%
Gross carrying amount RIEEE
- trade receivables (US$'000)  —EWE R R
(FEn) 30,501 1,677 - 309 32,487
Loss allowance (US$'000) FBEEE (TE1) 3 11 - 309 323
As at 31 December 2022, the loss allowances W _Z_+ =
for trade receivables were US$389,000 (2021: B=+—H EWE
US$323,000). Management are of opinion SRR ZBEEHRS

that that adequate provision for uncollectible

receivable has been made.

Impairment losses on trade receivables are
presented as net impairment losses within
operating profit. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited
against the same line item.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk (continued)

(i) Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Other receivables and amounts due from
related parties
The management considers that its credit risk
has not increased significantly since initial
recognition with reference to the counterparty
historical default rate and current financial
position. The impairment provision is
determined based on the 12-month expected
credit losses and is minimal.

Liquidity risk
Due to the capital intensive nature of the Group's
business, the Group ensures that it maintains
sufficient cash and credit lines to meet its liquidity
requirements.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the
Group’s liquidity reserve which comprises undrawn
borrowing facilities and cash and cash equivalents
on the basis of expected cash flows. The Group’s
policy is to regularly monitor current and expected
liquidity requirements and its compliance with
lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed
lines of funding from major financial institutions
to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3 MERKRERE @

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 HBEBRERR (&)
(c)  Ligquidity risk (continued) () AEELERE #)
The table below analyses the Group's financial THRBIZEGEEBEESHNT
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based HHB THERAERZ
on the remaining period at the balance sheet HaEns A HEEE AR E
date to the contractual maturity date. The ToOM-RNREPIREZ
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual AEHNRBRFAERE -
undiscounted cash flows.
Less than Between Between
1year 1and2years 2and5years Over5 years Total
—-ER  —EEWME WEELE BRLE fit
Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 US$'000
TEn e TEn e TZn
At 31 December 2022 RIBZZ
tZA=+-8
Bank borrowings (Note) RITHE () 58,228 1,519 2,213 - 61,960
Lease liabilities (Note) REaR () 554 463 1,303 1,735 4,055
Trade payables BB ZRT 27,591 - - - 21,591
Other payables and accruals — EMIENHBRESER 8,878 - - - 8,878
Amounts due to related parties [E{TERIEA LA 149 - - - 149
At 31 December 2021 RIEZ-%
+ZB=+-H
Bank borrowings (Note) RITEE () 32,041 5,300 3,541 - 40,882
Lease liabilities (Note) BEARE (N 454 380 1,130 1,765 3,729
Trade payables EBRRT 17,510 - - - 17,510
Other payables and accruals — EtIEIHEREHER 5,759 - - - 5,759
Amounts due to related parties FEf3%EBE A 3B 517 - - - 517
Note: I3
The balances include interest payable on bank borrowings ERGHRBEEESEPEMIER
and lease liabilities up to their respective maturities. TEEREESERLDZFIE
3.2 Capital management 3.2 BXEE

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.
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3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 MBERRBEE @)
3.2 Capital management (continued) 32 EBFXEE®)
Consistent with others in the industry, the Group HEREMABT—K AEEUE
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This EERLEXABERERERN ZLE
ratio is calculated as total borrowings divided by owners’ ERGEEEARRMITZEEE
equity as shown in the consolidated balance sheet. Total BRUEE AR E REEAE
borrowings include bank borrowings and lease liabilities. RITEEREERAE.
During 2022, the Group’s strategy, which was unchanged RIZZZHE AEEZERET
from 2021, was to maintain a reasonable gearing ratio. ST —FRRMEBEER SO T E
The gearing ratios at 31 December 2022 and 2021 were FEEBBELEEREGEKFE - ®
as follows: TEC_ERIEZ—F+ZR
=t+—HZEESBLENT
2022 2021
—=__ T —F
Us$’000 Us$'000
FET FET
Total borrowings wEE 63,099 43,327
Owners' equity (including non- B A#EE (B1ETA
controlling interest in equity) R IEER L) 291,718 302,017
Gearing ratio BEAMALE 21.6% 14.3%

The gearing ratio increased from 14.3% to 21.6% as
a result of increase in borrowings for purchasing raw
materials.

3.3 Fair value estimation

The carrying values less impairment provisions of trade
and other receivables, amounts due from related parties,
structured bank deposits, short-term bank deposits
and pledged bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents,
amounts due to related parties and trade and other
payables are assumed to approximate their fair values
because of their short maturities.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

(i)

Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates
made in determining the fair values of the financial
instruments that are recognised and measured at
fair value in the financial statements. To provide an
indication about the reliability of the inputs used in
determining fair value, the Group has classified its
financial instruments into the three levels prescribed

MEERKREE (8
3.3 ATEMG @)

(i) RNFEER
THMEBEEENRHEBEREA
BRATEERARFENEE
T AE8IA T ERE S F &

Rfhst e BISHEE A FER
BRABIBNRI ELEER £
EEZEHENRERES
MIEDEA=ZEE®H-

under the accounting standards.

Level 2
)
Us$'000
FEmT
Recurring fair value measurements EEMATFEE
At 31 December 2022 W2 _&+ZRB=+—H
Financial assets MBEEE
Financial assets at fair value through ~ B AFEFAEBZENHFEE
profit or loss -
Recurring fair value measurements E MR TEE
At 31 December 2021 R_E_—&F#+_A=+—H
Financial assets MBEE
Financial assets at fair value through ~ BAFEFAEBZNHHEE
profit or loss 2,533
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)
There were no transfers among different levels of fair
values measurement during the year.

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and out
of fair value hierarchy levels as at the end of the reporting
period.

Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments traded in
active markets (such as publicly traded derivatives, and
equity securities) is based on quoted market prices at the
end of the reporting period. The quoted market price
used for financial assets held by the Group is the current
bid price. These instruments are included in level 1.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that
are not traded in an active market (for example, over-
the-counter derivatives) is determined using valuation
technigues which maximise the use of observable market
data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific
estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an
instrument are observable, the instrument is included in
level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not
based on observable market data, the instrument is
included in level 3.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities within
the next financial year are addressed below.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(a)

(b)

Estimated useful lives and residual values of
property, plant and equipment

The Group determines the estimated useful lives, residual
values and related depreciation charges for the Group’s
property, plant and equipment. The estimate is based
on the historical experience of the actual useful lives
of property, plant and equipment of similar nature
and functions. The Group will revise the depreciation
charges where useful lives are different from those
previously estimated, or it will write-off or write-down
technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have
been abandoned or sold. Actual economic lives may differ
from estimated useful lives and actual residual values
may differ from estimated residual values. Periodic review
could result in a change in depreciable lives and residual
values and therefore depreciation expense in future
periods.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered
any impairment, in accordance with the accounting
policy stated in Note 2.8. For the purposes of impairment
reviews, the recoverable amount of goodwill is
determined based on the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal or value in use calculations. The recoverable
amount calculations primarily use cash flow forecast
based on financial budgets and forecasts covering a
period of five years approved by management and the
estimated terminal value at the end of the forecast
period.

There are a number of assumptions and estimates
involved in the preparation of cash flow forecast for
the period covered by the approved budgets. Key
assumptions include the growth rates and discount
rates to reflect the risks involved. Management prepares
the financial budgets and forecasts reflecting actual
and prior year performance and market development
expectations. Judgement is required to determine key
assumptions adopted in cash flow forecasts and changes
to key assumptions could affect these cash flow forecasts
and therefore the results of the impairment reviews. For
details, see Note 8.
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AR MR M

4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(c)

(d)

Estimated impairment of financial assets

The loss allowance for financial assets is based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates.
The Group uses judgement in making these assumptions
and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation,
based on the Group’'s past history, existing market
conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end
of each reporting period. Details of the key assumptions
and inputs used are disclosed in Note 3.

Net realisable value of inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale. The cost of inventories
is written down to net realisable value when there is
objective evidence that the cost of inventories may not be
recoverable. The amount written off to profit or loss is the
difference between the carrying value and net realisable
value of the inventories. In determining whether the cost
of inventories can be recovered, significant judgements
are required. In making this judgement, the Group
evaluates, among other factors, the duration and extent
and the means by which the amount will be recovered.
These estimates are based on the current market
condition and the historical experience of selling products
of a similar nature. It could change significantly as a
result of changes in customer preference and competitor
actions in response to market conditions.
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION 5

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as
the Executive Directors collectively. The Executive Directors
review the Group’s policies and information for the purposes
of assessing performance and allocating resources. During the
year ended 31 December 2022, the Group has been operating
in one single business segment, i.e. the manufacture and sale
of fermentation-based food additives, biochemical products

BEPE
TEEERREEHESAERNTE
B -HTEFERLSERZBRKRERU
FARRERDEER - BE_FT -
TZB=+—HLEFE xEEEE—R
BE—EBo8 REAHEEERMAR
ME 4 CERRABERNIXER &
mEMERD BEREE KB BERK

and cassava starch-based industrial products including modified Hth (ZZ2Z—& #8RE) °
starch, glucose syrup, MSG, GA and others (2021: same).
(a) Revenue (a) W=
2022 2021
Us$’000 Us$'000
F= FE7T
Sales of goods HEEW 451,007 382,361
Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities EAE BN Z War
The Group receives payments from certain customers rEERREBITENMKRETER
in advance of the performance under the contracts. ZHEMRH e TRETHARS A

The following table shows how much of the revenue
recognised in the current reporting period relates to
carried-forward contract liabilities.

Rz WEEEESNARZAM
BEE-

2022 2021
-z %
Us$’000 Us$'000
F=5T FET
Revenue recognised that was FAENENEBEERZ
included in the contract liabilities B E
balance at the beginning of the
year 5,885 4,230

During the year ended 31 December 2022, revenue of
approximately US$53,734,000 (2021: US$41,509,000) is
derived from a single external customer located in Japan.
The revenue is attributable to MSG/GA products.

All contracts are for periods of one year or less. As
permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction price allocated
to these unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.
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AR MR M

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 9BEHG
(a) Revenue (Continued) (a) Uz (&)
The Group's revenue by geographical location, which is AEBEZRMEBAE (BEFMIEN
determined by the geographical presence of customers, is BAE) B0z WlEMT
as follows:
2022 2021
=Sl - BT —F
Us$’000 Us$'000
FE7T FE=x
Vietnam (2] 194,999 169,363
Japan H4 83,083 62,832
The PRC FRE 62,663 63,447
ASEAN member countries (other than M ER (REiE#ME)

Vietnam) 35,991 29,067
America EJET) 36,256 26,132
Other regions Hihih & 38,015 31,520

451,007 382,361
(b) Non-current assets, other than prepayments, by location, (b) #HMUE HEEFMEBEZRATE 89
which is determined by the country in which the asset is ZIETEEE FEAHRIERIN W
located, are as follows: T
2022 2021
—EHF —E_—F
us$000 Us$'000
F= FE=
Vietnam e 153,038 158,693
The PRC FE 10,422 11,287
Cambodia RIHE - 2
Total =5 163,480 169,982
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2 8

6 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 6 ME -BERSE
Construction- Plant and Motor Office
in-progress Properties machinery vehicles  equipment Total
TEIR /S BERi%% RE WAERME EH
US§'000 US$'000 Us$'000 US§'000 US$'000 US$'000
RET BT TER TER RET FTER
At 1 January 2021 RZB2--%-A—-8
Cost mA 53,726 110,337 471,343 10,015 20,410 665,831
Accumulated depreciation RENE - (81,511) (388,517) (7,791) (18,424) (496,243)
Accumulated impairment RitRE - (1,214) (3,757) - (22) (4,993)
Net book amount REFE 53,726 27,612 79,069 2,224 1,964 164,595
Year ended 31 December 2021 HE_E_—-£+-A=+-H
LEE
Opening net book amount EVREFE 53,726 27,612 79,069 2,224 1,964 164,595
Additions RE 9,461 16 1,334 280 305 11,396
Transfer #2 (4,107) 131 3,784 - 53 (139)
Disposals (Note 29) HE (MEE29) - - (5) (22) 3) (30)
Depreciation (Note 21) #E (MzE21) - (2,791) (13,878) (545) (465) (17,679)
Exchange differences ERES - 140 53 3 - 19
Closing net book amount FREEEE 59,080 25,108 70,357 1,940 1,854 158,339
At 31 December 2021 WZB2Z-#+ZA=+-H
Cost A 59,080 110,728 471,743 10,043 20,756 672,350
Accumulated depreciation ZiE - (84,406) (397,629) (8,103) (18,880) (509,018)
Accumulated impairment Z5tRE - (1,214) (3,757) - (22) (4,993)
Net book amount REFE 59,080 25,108 70,357 1,940 1,854 158,339
Year ended 31 December 2022 HEZF-E+ZA=1-A
LEE
Opening net book amount FNRAZE 59,080 25,108 70,357 1,940 1,854 158,339
Additions RE 10,425 39 1,803 646 232 13,145
Transfer 64 (11,065) 3,284 7,378 268 135 -
Disposals (Note 29) HE (5829) - (3) (34) (19) - (56)
Depreciation (Note 21) & (1) - (2,887) (13,849) (548) (462) (17,746)
Written-off sy (895) - - - - (895)
Exchange differences ERESH - (487) (178) (33) (15) (713)
Closing net book amount FREREEE 57,545 25,054 65,477 2,254 1,744 152,074
At 31 December 2022 WZE-Z%+ZRA=+-H
Cost [ 57,545 113,156 477,869 10,420 20,990 679,980
Accumulated depreciation 2HITE - (86,888) (408,635) (8,166) (19,224) (522,913)
Accumulated impairment ZitAE - (1,214) (3.757) - (22) (4,993)
Net book amount REFE 57,545 25,054 65,477 2,254 1,744 152,074

Depreciation expense of US$16,650,000 (2021: US$16,905,000)
has been charged in cost of sales, US$624,000 (2021:
US$292,000) in selling and distribution expenses and
US$472,000 (2021: US$482,000) in administrative expenses.

During the year, the Group has capitalised borrowing costs
amounting to US$275,000 (2021: US$225,000) on qualifying
assets.
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6 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 6 ME -BERRE G

As at 31 December 2022, certain buildings with carrying RIZEZZE+ZA=+—H IKEEA
amount of US$3,224,000 (2021: US$3,603,000), were pledged 3,224,000% 7w (ZEZ—4% 1 3,603,000
as collaterals for the Group’s bank borrowings of US$1,005,000 E7T) NETEFECEFAANEBRIRTE
(2021: US$784,000) (Note 18). 1,005,000 7T (ZEZ—4F 1 784,000

7o) By G (isE18) °

7 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES 7 FERAREERHEEAE®R
(i) Amount recognised in the consolidated balance (i) MNEEEEERRBEINEE
sheet
The consolidated balance sheet shows the following GEEEBBERISIUTHEER
amounts relating to leases: RN EER .
2022 2021
—E_C S
Uss$’000 Us$'000
F=7T FET
Land use rights + s FA A 3,784 3,335
Building BF 1,359 1,498
Equipment Eodic ] 9 8
Total right-of-use assets EREEERT 5,152 4,841
Current lease liabilities mEMEEARE 443 369
Non-current lease liabilities EREEEAR 3,035 2,650
Total lease liabilities HEaBERE 3,478 3,019
Movement of right of use assets for the year: FRTEAEEENES) !
2022 2021
—E_C ZE—F
Uss$’000 US$'000
F=E=7T FET
At 1 January w—RB—H 4,841 4,914
Additions for the year FARE 583 376
Termination of contract during the year £ R4 IE &4 (49) (86)
Lease modification MEE 481 -
Amortisation of right-of-use assets EREEE®E (549) (405)
Exchange differences ERELE (155) 42
At 31 December B+=ZB=+—H 5,152 4,841
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7 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES 7 FEHARBEEREEGRE (B
(continued)
(ii) Amounts recognised in the consolidated income (i) MEEREREDNEE
statement
The consolidated income statement shows the following FEWRERBIIUATHEBAERBRAN
amounts relating to leases: £E
2022 2021
—E_C ="
Us$’000 Us$'000
FE7T FET
Amortisation charged of right-of-use  fFAEEEENBNR
assets: iy
Land use rights TR 401 271
Building s 148 134
549 405
Interest expense (included in MERMZ GTARBEZH)
finance cost) 104 92
Expense relating to short-term leases EfEHATAEARINEX
(included in cost of goods sold and GtAEEERmMAK
administrative expenses) THHX) 75 47
The total cash outflow for leases, including payment for BE_Z__F+-“A=+—HL
short-term leases, for the year ended 31 December 2022 FENHENRSRHEER (B1F
was US$719,000 (2021: US$422,000). SEEFENR) B£719,000 T (Z

T —4F 1 422,00057T) °
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7 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES
(continued)

(iii) The Group’s leasing activities and how these are

accounted for
The land use rights of the Group are located in the PRC
and Vietnam.

Xiamen Vedan Foods Co. Ltd (“Xiamen Vedan”) and
Shanghai Vedan Enterprise Co. Ltd (“Shanghai Vedan”),
subsidiaries established and operating in the PRC, have
each been granted rights to use two lands in the PRC by
the relevant authority for 50 years, which will expire in
2042 and 2060, respectively.

Vedan (Vietnam) Enterprise Corporation Limited, a
subsidiary established and operating in Vietnam, has
obtained the rights to use certain lands in Vietnam by the
relevant authority for 43 to 50 years, which will expire in
2041.

Rental contract for building is made for a fixed period of
10 years.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants other
than the security interests in the leased assets that are
held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as
security for borrowing purposes.

7
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS 8 ®mIWEE
Software
Goodwill and licence Trademarks Total
He B RER L At
US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
FTEx ST FE7 S
At 1 January 2021 RZZ2Z—-%—-HB—H
Cost A 8,496 2,089 12,189 22,774
Accumulated amortisation Rty - (1,854) (12,137) (13,991)
Accumulated impairment REHAME (6,687) - - (6,687)
Net book amount REFE 1,809 235 52 2,096
Year ended 31 December 2021 gE_E-_—-5+”ZRA=+-AH
LEE
Opening net book amount EVREFE 1,809 235 52 2,096
Amortisation charge (Note 21) HIHR S (f5E21) - (113) (14) (127)
Additions HE - 17 - 17
Transfer [ - 139 - 139
Exchange differences EREE (25) - - (25)
Closing net book amount EREEFE 1,784 278 38 2,100
At 31 December 2021 RZEZ—-5+ZA=+—H
Cost S 8,471 2,245 12,189 22,905
Accumulated amortisation Rty - (1,967) (12,151) (14,118)
Accumulated impairment ZEtHE (6,687) - - (6,687)
Net book amount FREZE 1,784 278 38 2,100
Year ended 31 December 2022 BE-Z--“F+=-A=1+—H
LEE
Opening net book amount FNEERE 1,784 278 38 2,100
Amortisation charge (Note 21) HHEE (HE21) - (99) (38) (137)
Additions RE - 20 - 20
Exchange differences ERER 97 - - 97
Closing net book amount FRIREFE 1,881 199 - 2,080
At 31 December 2022 RZEZZF+ZA=+—-H
Cost A 8,568 2,265 12,189 23,022
Accumulated amortisation Rt - (2,066) (12,189) (14,255)
Accumulated impairment REAE (6,687) - - (6,687)
Net book amount REEE 1,881 199 - 2,080

Amortisation charge is included in administrative expenses.
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AR MR M

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Impairment tests for goodwill:

Goodwill is attributed to the Group’s CGUs according to

8 ®mPEE @
EERER

AEDREEESHDEENERHN

operating segment. RE B
The PRC Vietnam
MSG MSG
related related
business business Total
& R A Fgea]le 3 o
TR T THRAER st
Us$’000 Us$’000 Us$'000
FTEx FTEx FTEx
At 31 December 2022 A=
+=ZA=+—H 1,151 730 1,881
At 31 December 2021 WZE——%
+=ZA=+—H 1,054 730 1,784

Management determined the recoverable amount based on
the higher of value-in-use (“VIU") and the fair value less cost
of disposal (“FVLCD") calculations of the cash-generating unit
("CGU"). The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined
based on VIU calculations. These calculations use pre-tax
cash flow projections based on financial budgets prepared by
management and approved by the Board of Directors covering
a five years period. Cash flows beyond the five years period are
extrapolated using the estimated growth rates stated below
if applicable. The growth rates do not exceed the long-term
average growth rates for the MSG related business in which the
CGU operates.

The key assumptions used for the value-in-use calculation of

EEERBEFEHRNIRE BN (THREUR
TEA) NEREE (EREHE) &2
FEREENS (A FEBHEMRE)
W& PRV S E E E AT YR Bl EE o BREVIR
TEMUNTREZERBREREESE
EE - ZEAECAENEEERARE
EFeMEZIFHMRBATREZF
RARERERAET BHEFHZR
TREBEAUTHRII 2 EFHERERER
(WER) - BREFESNHRINREE
fUFTEEZ KB RREH N R TI9E

%o

BUFETEREEERNREEMUR

the goodwill in the PRC MSG related CGU are as follows. EBFRAEEZEFERRWM T
The PRC
I
2022 2021
BT HF —E—F
Sales per annum (US$'000) FFEHESE (TE7T) 14,465 - 16,780 13,032 - 14,913
Growth rate in sales HERREE 3% - 8% 3% -7%
Gross margin EFE 16.5% - 17.1% 14.8% - 15.4%
Other operating costs per annum SFEEMEEMRSE

(US$°000) (F=7) 1,627 - 1,887 1,234 - 1,448
Long term growth rate REAIERZ 3% 3%
Discount rate (pre-tax) IR (#aD) 16.2% 15.5%
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8

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Impairment tests for goodwill: (continued)

Sales per annum and growth rate in sales is estimated with
reference to the past performance of the CGU, management’s
expectations of market development, current industry trends
and long term inflation forecasts.

Management determined budgeted gross margin based on past
performance and its expectations of market developments. The
discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating
to the relevant operating segments.

Other operating costs are the fixed costs of the CGUs, which do
not vary significantly with sales volumes or prices. Management
forecasts these costs based on the current structure of the
business, adjusting for inflationary increases and these do not
reflect any future restructurings or cost saving measures. The
amounts disclosed above are the average operating costs for
the five-year forecast period.

The management has performed sensitivity analysis over the
PRC MSG related business. A decrease in annual sales volume
growth rate by 37.2%, a decrease in annual sales price growth
rate by 1.2%, a decrease in gross margin by 10.9%, an increase
in annual operating costs by 1.0%, a decrease in long term
growth rate by 4.7% or an increase in discount rate by 2.5%,
all changes taken in isolation, full impairment of the remaining
balance of goodwill would be required.

Based on the impairment review on the goodwill of PRC
and Vietnam MSG related business, the recoverable amount
calculated based on value-in-use calculations exceeds its
carrying value. As a result, no impairment loss was recognised
during the year ended 31 December 2022.
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9 SUBSIDIARIES 9 MEBAHE
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 FHAER-_E_—_&#+-A=+—Hz
December 2022: FTERBABFE :
Proportion of
Proportion of  ordinary shares
Place of incorporation/ Particulars of ordinary shares held by
establishment and Principal activities and issued/paid up held by non-controlling
Name kind of legal entity  place of operation share capital the Group interest
E[32 0 5]
SEMARIL, PRIt B FEERAZ "BAZ
%1 NRARRBES  IEXBREEML BEA/MERENE  HEREA  HERLA
Directly hefd:
EB#15E -
Winball Investment Limited British Virgin Islands Investment holding in Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares of 100% -
(“BVI) US$1 each
EBRUES EEBRELZR 100 BREEIZTH
(RERLES)) LBk
Talent Top Investment Ltd. BVI Investment holding in Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares of 100% -
US$1 each
EREUEE EEBRELZR 100/ B REE1ZTH
il
Indirectly held:
BEEE -
Burghley Enterprise Pte., Ltd. Singapore Investment holding in Singapore US$61,109,000 ordinary 100% -
shares
i) 1B ERIRREER 61,109,000% 7t & 8 %
Ordino Investments Pte., Ltd. Singapore Investment holding in Singapore US$20,177,000 ordinary 100% -
shares
Fig)1p ERIRREER 20,177,000% 7T & @M
Vedan (Vietnam) Enterprise Corporation ~ Vietnam Manufacturing and sale of 171,574,967 ordinary 99.9% 0.1%
Limited fermentation-based food additives shares of US$1 each

and biochemical products and
cassava starch-based industrial
products including MSG, GA,
modified starch, glucose syrup,
soda and acid in Vietnam and for
export
fitd=] HURRERFEEERMAM 171,574,967 SR EE
B ECERRABRNIEE IZTNEER
o BERE SRR 2R
0 EERR FTRERTLO
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9 SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 9

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31
December 2022: (continued)

M 28 (48

TIAER_E__

TERBABEE (8

Proportion of

F+ZA=+—HZ

Proportion of
ordinary shares

Place of incorporation/ Particulars of ordinary shares held by
establishment and Principal activities and issued/paid up held by non-controlling
Name kind of legal entity  place of operation share capital the Group interest
El32d 0 5
FEMALIL, FRILE FEERAZ BREZ
218 MRiEERBER TEEBREENE BE1T/BRRFHE BRERLA BERLH
Shanghai Vedan Enterprise Co. Ltd. PRC, limited liability Packaging and sale of MSG, starch, ~ US$9,800,000 registered 100% -
company seasoning and other products in capital
the PRC
LEKRBEERRAF FEBREEAR  TREOERHEERE BM - EK  9,800,000FTHBELR
B REMER
Xiamen Vedan Foods Co. Ltd. PRC, limited liability Packaging and sale of MSG, starch, US$20,270,000 100% -
company seasoning and other products in registered capital
the PRC
EM%AERERAT FEBREEAT  ETESERHBERE RH AR  20,270,000% T
SRR EME f B
Xiamen Darong Import & Export Trade  PRC, limited liability Sale of starch and other products in ~ US$254,000 registered 100% -
Co., Ltd. company the PRC capital
BMABELOBRBRAR FEBREEAT  ETEHERNREMER 254,000% T M E A
Vedan International (Cambodia) Cambodia Sale of fermentation-based food Registered capital of Riels 100% -
Co., Ltd. additives and biochemical 2,640,000,000

products and cassava starch-based
industrial products in Cambodia
and for export

REE RRBEUSERRRFME &
EERBRABRN IEXEMHE
&0
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AR MR M

10 INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE 10 H—RHBEARZIEE
Movement of the investment in an associate is as follows: R—EBEARZREZEEHUWT !
2022 2021
—EF BT —F
us$’000 Us$'000
FE7T FErx
As at 1 January w—B—H 4,702 4,903
Share of post-tax loss of an associate FEIE—MEE QSRR E
K518 (528) (201)
As at 31 December W+ZB=+—H 4,174 4,702

Nature of the investment in an associate as at 31 December
2022 and 2021:

WZEBE__HFR-E-_—%+2ZA
=t—B R—EEREARZRENREN

T
Country of Particulars of % Measurement
Name Incorporation issued share capital interest held method
EuY ] ERIZAvAEES BRITRAEHE RFEEZ% HEARE
Dacin International The Cayman Islands 21,027,559 shares of 30 Equity
Holdings Limited US$1 each
EMERZERBRAR HEHES 21,027,559 8K R A

EE1ETZRAG

The associate is principally engaged in real estate development
in Vietnam.

Dacin International Holdings Limited is a private company and
there is no quoted market price available for its shares.

There is capital commitment amounting to US$112,000 (2021:
US$112,000) in relation to the Group’s investment in the
associate.

ZHMEARNTENUERERMEL R

EMERZERAERABDAMARR BE
BR A7 I fR T R AE

FEEMPRZBEQT ZKRESB112,000
ET(TEBZT—HF 112,000E7w) 28X
Ao

Annual Report 2022 3% 179



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR M IR R MR

10

11

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) 10 W—HEBEATIZIRE (B)
Reconciliation of summarised financial information B E R EHER
2022 2021
T F ==
us$'000 Us$’000
F=7T FEr
Net assets as at 1 January R—A—BZEEFE 15,674 16,342
Loss for the year NEEFE (1.761) (668)
Net assets as at 31 December R+ZA=+—HB2Z
BEFE 13,913 15,674
Interest in an associate (30%) REE AT ZHERE(30%) 4,174 4,702
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 11 RENISZEMIA
2022 2021
—E-C —_FE_—
Us$'000 Us$’000
FE=x FET
Financial assets at amortised cost BBERATEZ
MEEE
— Trade receivables —EWESER® 33,990 32,164
— Other receivables — H i fE RIS 1,039 996
— Amounts due from related parties —EUEREANLRIE 126 1,442
— Pledged bank deposits —EIRIRITEAR = 1,075
— Cash and cash equivalents - RERREEEY 47,810 66,136
Financial assets at fair value through BATFESAERZN
profit or loss MEEE
— Structured bank deposits —EBERITER - 2,533
Financial liabilities at amortised cost BEHER AT EZ
MEaE
— Trade payables —ENEZERNR 27,591 17,510
— Other payables and accruals —HMEMRIER
fEst & A 8,878 5,759
— Amounts due to related parties — B EREANLRIE 149 517
— Bank borrowings —iRITEE 59,621 40,308
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AR MR M

12 INVENTORIES 12 =8
2022 2021
—EICHF TET—F
us$000 Us$'000
F=Ex FE=rx
Consumables JHEE SR 7,571 6,711
Raw materials FE A 73,762 46,854
Work in progress RS 6,181 6,389
Finished goods By 53,065 41,758
140,579 101,712
Less: Provision for impairment losses on B FERERERE
inventories (52) (64)
140,527 101,648
The cost of inventories of US$355,425,000 (2021: FE& A 4355,425,000E 7T (Z B - —£F :
US$271,177,000) has been charged in cost of sales. 271,177,000 7t) Bt ASHE R 7S ©
The write-off and reversal of impairment of inventories included BERHEEMREZFERE M RERD
in cost of sales amounted to US$Nil (2021: US$16,000) and DRAEET (CTEZ—HF 16,000E7T)
US$12,000 (2021: US$113,000), respectively. 12,0007k (ZE-—4F : 113,000%
7o) °©
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13 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 13 BUWE ZRMRKRHMEWYRIE
2022 2021
ZEICHF —E—
Us$’000 Us$’000
F=5T FET
Trade receivables from third parties FEWRE=1EZIRMN 34,379 32,487
Less: loss allowance B EBEEE (389) (323)
Trade receivables - net FEY & 5 AR 7R — B 58 33,990 32,164
Prepayments FETRIE 18,662 12,434
VAT recoverable AU [E]1E (B R 338 737
Other receivables H iR IE 911 873
Amount due from an associate FEW —FR B E AR IE 8 3
Loan to an associate (Note (b)) BT —HBEARZ
&M (HisE (b)) 120 120
54,029 46,331
Less: non-current portion W FEBNEAER
— Prepayments for plant and equipment — R E K ETEARIE (1.301) (2,718)
Current portion BN HA ZB 43 52,728 43,613
Prepayments mainly represent advance payment for the FENREEEHEMRE R E R E R
purchase of raw materials and plant and equipment. RBETEMAIRIE
The carrying values of the Group's trade and other receivables HRARRE  AEEERKRE ZRMRE
approximate their fair values due to their short maturity. HEWRIEZ BREEREATERS-
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13 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 13 EUE 5 R R H th UL R IE (48)
The credit terms of trade receivables range from cash on [EWBZERZEERNTFEINMIRE
delivery to 60 days. The Group may grant a longer credit period OR - AEETRAETELARERER
to certain customers, subject to the satisfactory results of credit Bl MEZBRREETGHZREGER-
assessment. The ageing of the trade receivables based on B E ZRFIREZEHAZRENT ¢

invoice date is as follows:

2022 2021
=2 - —F
Uss$’000 us$’000
FE7T FEx
0 - 30 days 0E30Xk 24,014 21,790
31 - 90 days 31E90XK 9,069 9,694
91 — 180 days 91FE 180K 604 368
181 — 365 days 181FE 365K 172 124
Over 365 days 365K £ 520 511
34,379 32,487
The maximum exposure to credit risk at 31 December 2021 and A CE_—EFEREZ_F£+-H
2022 are the carrying amounts of trade and other receivables =t+—HEBZEAXEERRERA LME
mentioned above. The Group does not hold any collateral as W B 5 AR R M GRIE 2 BRI B © 748
security. SEETESE KT RERT
The carrying amounts of the trade and other receivables are FEUL B 5 BR 7R e ELfth FE IR IE Z R E 1B
denominated in the following currencies: BTy EEEE
2022 2021
ZEICHE T
Uss$’000 Us$'000
F=7T FE7
Vietnam Dong WA 26,737 20,614
uss$ EP 18,992 15,782
Renminbi AR 8,220 9,761
Others Hith 80 174
54,029 46,331
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13 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(a)

(b)

13 BWESRMRKEMERRE (@

Loss allowance of trade receivables (a) EWREBZRRZEEEE
The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to AEERRASEMBREERNE
measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime R A AT EHEREESE &
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables. FRrE W E SRR A 2 TR
B -
The closing loss allowance for trade receivables as at 31 WZEB__H+”"_HA=+—HZE
December 2022 reconciles to the opening loss allowance WE ZIRRZ EREIEEEEER
as follows: BIEEEZHEROT
2022 2021
Us$’000 Us$'000
FET FE7
Opening loss allowance R—B—BZFkEE
as at 1 January & 323 362
Increase/(decrease) in loss allowance  RERLGREWZRPER
recognised in consolidated income ZEEEEEEm
statement during the year (R 66 (39)
Closing loss allowance R+ZA=+—Hz
as at 31 December FREBIEEE 389 323
The provision for credit loss of receivables has been MERTIEEEHEBEHNEED
included in administrative expenses in the consolidated FAGERTZRNITHRAZH N
income statement. Amounts charged to the allowance BERINBNESE—RIRTEHEE
account are generally written off when there is no U [0] 88 25 B3 < BT 8 o
expectation of recovering additional cash.
The other classes within trade and other receivables do FEU B Z R R HMEWRIEAZ
not contain impaired assets. HE T FEEEREEE
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the balance sheet REBEH EEEERME LME
date is the carrying value of each class of receivable A EWEARRZIREE AEFE L
mentioned above. The Group does not hold any collateral BB TAIRR REIKE o
as security.
Loan to an associate (b) HBF—HEHMEATZER

As at 31 December 2022, the loan to an associate of
US$120,000 (2021: US$120,000) which is unsecured,
bears interest at 4.5% (2021: 4.5%), per annum,
denominated in US$ and repayable on demand.
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14 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, STRUCTURED 14
BANK DEPOSITS AND PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

RERREEEN SBERITER
RARIRIRITERR

2022 2021

—E-CHE T —fF

UsS$'000 Us$'000

FEx FE7T

Pledged bank deposits (note (a)) R IRTTIER () - 1,075
Structured bank deposits (note (b)) EBMIRITER (MEb)) = 2,533
Cash at bank and on hand RITRFBERE 47,810 66,136
47,810 69,744

As at 31 December 2022, cash at bank of US$47,676,000
(2021: US$66,003,000) and bank deposits of US$Nil (2021:
US$3,608,000) were exposed to credit risk.

The remittance of the funds out of the PRC bank accounts
of US$2,413,000 (2021: US$16,978,000) and Vietnam bank
accounts of US$41,063,000 (2021: US$52,973,000) is subject
to exchange restrictions imposed by the PRC and Vietnamese
governments, respectively.

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents, pledged bank deposits
and structured bank deposits are denominated in the following
currencies:

R-EBE-_—_#+"_A=+—80" 3§
T3 £47,676,000E T (Z B - —
£ 1 66,003,000%7T) RIR{TTERE
27T (ZEZ—4 3,608,000 7T)
HEREE R

EHPBEETERERZE S
2,413,000 T (ZEZ—&F .
16,978,000% 75) J & ¥R $R1T
RAZE$41,063,000E 7T (ZE
_—% 152,973,000 7T) BAD
8 <F o B e it RS U B A0 BE B A e
it ©

AEEZRERASE BN 5T
SRITIERUR A5 B RAT 1 AR U T
EEEHE -

2022 2021

=== T

Uss$’000 Us$'000

FET FE

Vietnam Dong HWEE 15,500 31,571
us$ EP 27,523 25,495
Renminbi AR 2,414 11,468
Hong Kong dollar BT 100 107
New Taiwan dollar matk 1,847 966
Others Hi 426 137
47,810 69,744
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14 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, STRUCTURED
BANK DEPOSITS AND PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS
(continued)

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's bank balances
amounting to US$1,075,000 were deposited at
designated bank accounts in certain banks as guarantee
deposits for certain letter of credits released to the

(a) Pledged bank deposits
Group’s customers.
(b) Structured bank deposits

As at 31 December 2021, the structured bank deposits
amounting to US$2,533,000 represented wealth
management products issued by certain reputable banks
in PRC with guaranteed principal, variable interest and
terms less than 182 days. Changes in fair value of these
investments were recognised in “other gains — net” in the
consolidated income statement.

15 SHARE CAPITAL

14 RERREEEY GBERTER
BiRIRERITER ()

(a) IEIIRITEM
W_EZ—F+ZA=+—H'%&
EEMETT4ER1,075,000E 7T )5
AT ERZERAEENETEHE
HERERERS TIRITHNIEER
(=

(b) #EBMHIRITER
A _E_—FE+_BA=1+—H &
B R1TF2,533,000E T A& H
EETHMZRTHETHNERER
ERERABEFRLIS FHIE
BHBEDRI2R - ZEREMNA
TEEFHNR AN EREDRSTH
iU s — B EA L o

15 Bz

Authorised ordinary shares

EEEBER
Par value Number
us$ of shares Us$'000
E{EET K& FET
At 1 January 2021, A ZZE-_—F—F—QA-

31 December 2021, “E_—-H+"A=+—H"
1 January 2022 and “E-FE—-B—HK
31 December 2022 —E-_F+ZRB=+—H 0.01 10,000,000,000 100,000

Issued and fully paid ordinary shares

BETRBREER
Par value Number
Us$ of shares Us$'000
E{EET K& FET
At 1 January 2021, A ZE”_—F—F—Q8"

31 December 2021, “E-—-H+-"A=+—H"
1 January 2022 and “E-FE—-B—HK
31 December 2022 —E-_F+ZRB=+—H 0.01 1,522,742,000 15,228
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16 RESERVES 16 f#fE
Share  Exchange Merger ~ Statutory  Retained
premium reserve reserve reserve earnings Total
(Note (a)) (Note (b))
RiPEE ERREE A6HE  EEHRE  RERA At
(Mizk@)  (HIEED))
Us$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 Us$'000
FTEn T=n TEn TEn FTEn =R
At 1 January 2021 KRIEZ—5—F—H 47,358 9,876 79,994 828 147,776 285,832
Comprehensive income Z2ERA
Profit for the year FEERF - - - - 11,014 11,014
Other comprehensive income EftZ2HEIKA
Currency translation differences ERZH - 907 - - - 907
Total comprehensive income 2 EIRALBE - 907 - - 11,014 11,921
Total transactions with HBEEAZBR R
owners
Dividends paid (Note 24) BRRE (ME24) - - - - (11,192) (11,192)
Reallocation of statutory reserve B D EEEHE - - - 46 (46) -
At 31 December 2021 RIZZ—%
+ZB=+—H 47,358 10,783 79,994 874 147,552 286,561
At 1 January 2022 W_E__F#—HF—H 47,358 10,783 79,994 874 147,552 286,561
Comprehensive loss 2EBE
Loss for the year KEERB - - - - (4,386) (4,386)
Other comprehensive loss Hit2EEE
Currency translation differences ERZ &8 - (3,449) - - - (3,449)
Total comprehensive loss ZEGHRESE - (3,449) - - (4,386) (7,835)
Total transactions with HBEBEAZERZE
owners
Dividends paid (Note 24) BRRE (E24) - - - - (2,466) (2,466)
Reallocation of statutory reserve B D EATE fE - - - 27 27) -
At 31 December 2022 RZEZZ%&
+ZB=+-H 47,358 7,334 79,994 901 140,673 276,260
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16 RESERVES (continued) 16

Notes:
(a) Merger reserve

The merger reserve of the Group represents the difference
between the nominal value of the share capital and share
premium of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the group
reorganisation completed on 26 December 2002 and the nominal
value of the share capital of the Company issued in exchange

#fh (&)

MiEE -

(a)

A

FEBNGHEREBEREN 2T -F
+ZAZHRNEEMNER BRI
MEABNRAEERKRADEERELR
AMETRBMMETZRABENE
2Fo

therefor.
(b)  Statutory reserve (b) EEHE
The PRC companies are required to allocate 10% of the FEATIRIERARFFZI10%EETE
companies’ net profits to the statutory reserves fund until such R HELATBSTERATGMESR
fund reaches 50% of the companies’ registered capitals. The Z50% SRR E  EERES
statutory reserves fund can be utilised, upon approval by the AFEALIRE R BB MATF
relevant authorities, to offset accumulated losses or to increase MEEX FIRABALABEBERTNR
registered capital of the companies, provided that such fund is AEMERRLD25%
maintained at a minimum of 25% of the companies’ registered
capitals.
17 TRADE PAYABLES, ACCRUALS AND OTHER 17 BEHEZRR B ERAREMEN
PAYABLES ™M
2022 2021
=z T
Us$’000 Us$'000
F=T FE
Current BN A
Trade payables FE1T B 5 AR 27,591 17,510
Accruals fEst & B 7,781 10,596
Payable of purchase of property, plant and FEftEEYE BERK
equipment and construction costs REURBRER RIS 814 476
Contract liabilities (Note (a)) G 8aE (@) 4,339 5,885
Other payables HhEARIE 7,206 4,359
Total trade payables, accruals and [T E SR FEst &R
other payables REMAEE I RIE4E%E 47,731 38,826
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17 TRADE PAYABLES, ACCRUALS AND OTHER 17
PAYABLES (continued)

At 31 December 2022 and 2021, the ageing of trade payables
based on invoice date is as follows:

EHERRM Bt ERREMER
IE (48)
N_E_—_Fk_E-_—%+ZA4
=+—HB ENEZRFEEZEAHZER

BT
2022 2021
B _HF B —F
Us$’000 Us$'000
FE7T FE=x
0 - 30 days 0E30%k 25,334 16,851
31 - 90 days 31E90K 2,257 659
27,591 17,510

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables, accruals
and other payables are denominated in the following

FEBZEMNEZRT B BEAKEM
EAMEZ REEE THEEE

currencies:

2022 2021
g B —F
Us$'000 Us$'000
FEx F=E=
Vietnam Dong W E 23,195 20,022
Us$ e 16,031 12,696
New Taiwan Dollar matE - 24
Renminbi AR 8,500 5,995
Others Hih 5 89
47,731 38,826

(a) Contract liabilities (a) &HERFE

The contract liabilities primarily relate to the deposits
or payments received in advance for sales of goods not
yet delivered to customers. Revenue is recognised when
goods are delivered to customers.

BHNREFERRRNTFERZE
mHEZFARE SN RE R I
HRERRNTERRED -

Annual Report 2022 3% 189



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR M IR R MR

18 BANK BORROWINGS 18 RITEEH
2022 2021
ZEICHF —E—
Us$’000 Us$’000
F=T FET
Non-current JEBNHA
- Long-term bank borrowings —RHERITEE
— secured —HigE 8,081 12,856
- Long-term bank borrowings —RHBRITEE
- unsecured —EIR 566 1,776
Less: current portion of long-term bank B RERTEEZ
borrowings BRERER o3 (5.216) (5,985)
3,431 8,647
Current BNEA
— Short-term bank borrowings —iHERIRITEE
— secured — Bk 40,254 15,698
— Short-term bank borrowings —I2HRERITIBE
— unsecured —mig 10,720 9,978
— Current portion of long-term bank —REIRITEEZ
borrowings — secured BERER 3 — HB KR 3,321 4,776
- Current portion of long-term bank —RHERITHREZ
borrowings — unsecured BERER 3 — MK 4R 1,895 1,209
56,190 31,661
Total bank borrowings IRITIEE4ERE 59,621 40,308

190  Vedan International (Holdings) Limited b BT (Z88) A IRAE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR MR M

18 BANK BORROWINGS (continued)
At 31 December 2022, the Group's bank borrowings were

18 SRITEE (B
RZE_ZF+"RHA=+—H x&EEZ

repayable as follows: SRITEBEBEN U THARERE :
2022 2021
St TR
Us$'000 Us$’000
F=7T FE7T
Within 1 year —FRN 56,190 31,661
Between 1 and 2 years —EEME 1,440 5,216
Between 2 and 5 years MEERE 1,991 3,431
59,621 40,308

The exposure of the Group's borrowings to interest rate
changes and the contractual repricing dates at the end of the

RIREMER > FEREERELE

MEREHRAGNENRITERIHN

reporting period are as follows: B
2022 2021
g B —F
US$'000 Us$'000
FET FEx
Within 6 months 6B A 50,992 27,861
Between 7 and 12 months TE12{8 8 5,199 3,800
Between 1 and 5 years 1858 3,430 8,647
59,621 40,308

The carrying values of the Group’s borrowings approximate
their fair values.

The effective interest rates per annum of the Group's

FEBRBEZRABEHEQTEE

RESWR AEREEZERE

borrowings at the end of the reporting period were as follows: FZRWMTF
2022 2021
ZEICTHE TR
us$ E7T 3.7% 1.1%
New Taiwan dollar mats 1.8% 1.8%
Renminbi AR 3.6% 4.6%
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18 BANK BORROWINGS (continued)

18

The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings are

denominated in the following currencies:

IRITEE (48)

FEBBEZRAMERUTERE

2022 2021
St T
Us$'000 Us$'000
T=E7T FET
uss =7 56,578 38,088
New Taiwan dollar A 1,303 1,436
Renminbi AR 1,740 784
59,621 40,308
The Group has the following undrawn borrowing facilities: NEEBEUTKRIEAEERMRE !
2022 2021
—E-C T —F
Us$’000 Us$'000
F=E=7T FEmT
Floating rate: FE
— Expiring within one year —R—F RN 101,342 117,023
— Expiring beyond one year —R—F%EH 43,950 32,740
Fixed rate: TE
— Expiring within one year —R—FE R 574 12,664
— Expiring beyond one year —R—F &I - 11,035
145,866 173,462

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has aggregate
bank facilities of approximately US$S$205,487,000 (2021:
US$213,770,000) for bank borrowings, trade finance and other
general banking facilities. Unutilised amount as at 31 December
2022 amounted to US$145,866,000 (2021: US$173,462,000).
Among them, US$96,767,000 (2021: US$110,258,000) and
US$287,000 (2021: US$8,622,000) of the unutilised bank
facilities were secured by corporate guarantees issued by the
Company and pledged by the Group’s buildings with carrying
amount of US$3,224,000 (2021: US$3,603,000) (Note 6),
respectively.
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19 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 19 REFRIGH

Deferred income tax is calculated in full on temporary RIEFFEMIDBHBEEEEIUNEREZE

differences under the liability method using the principal tax FMEERERNETERENMBEYEREE
rates prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates. REFTE

The analysis of deferred income tax liabilities is as follows:

BIEFFSMEBREZRWT !

2022 2021
—EC ZEZ—F
Us$’000 Us$’000
FE7T FE=x
— Deferred income tax assets to be — R EBIB 1218 B & Uk =]
recovered after more than 12 months ZIREFTISMEE 3,215 3,398
— Deferred income tax liabilities to be —BRiBiBE12ME B8 % UkE
recovered after more than 12 months ZIREFTIEM AR (2,638) (1,733)
The net movement on the deferred income tax account is as FIEFT SRS S FEEWMT ¢
follows:
2022 2021
== —EC—F
US$'000 Us$'000
FE7T FE=x
At 1 January w—EB—H 1,665 2,134
Credited to consolidated income statement st AfE&aURFER (i:E23)
(Note 23) (1,088) (469)
At 31 December K+ZHA=+—H 577 1,665

The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities REERIEFRSHEERAE CRETRIE
during the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting HERERI AEENGEERR) NWEBW
of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows: T

Deferred income tax liabilities

RIEFRFIRAR

Accelerated tax depreciation

MRRIBITE
2022 2021
—E-C s
US$'000 us$'000
F=Erx FErx
At 1 January w—B—H 3,398 3,818
Charged to consolidated income statement 4R & Wz &= A0 (183) (420)
At 31 December W+ZHA=+—H 3,215 3,398

Annual Report 2022 3% 193



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR M IR R MR

20

19 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued) 19 BEFRSIR ()
Deferred income tax assets EEFRSIREE
Other temporary differences
HMEREE
2022 2021
—E-—&F —E=-—
Us$°000 Us$’000
F%E7T FERT
At 1 January w—B—H (1,733) (1,684)
Credited to consolidated income statement st A& WER (905) (49)
At 31 December R+ZBE=+—H (2.638) (1,733)
According to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, the profits RIERBEERSRE RERETHE
of PRC subsidiaries of the Group derived since 1 January 2008 WEABIBE-_ZEZEN\F—A—HEESE
will be subject to withholding tax at a rate of 10% upon BYEF] > BRI T INE R & E RS
the distribution of such profits to foreign investors. Deferred 10% I EMMTEINKR - BN ANEEIE
income tax liabilities of US$1,085,000 (2021: US$1,122,000) FZEFEWRBRARZKRERK  BR
have not been recognised in respect of temporary differences EEZHENBABR R A ELHZYE
attributable to accumulated profits of the Group's PRC REZEBEAARAAER A R4S 2R A > it
subsidiaries as the Group controls the dividend policy of BN ZEENEERDEIEMESRAE
these PRC subsidiaries and it is probable that these temporary 1,085,000 (ZE - —4 : 1,122,000
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future. The Em) cHENBATREHNEF FE
unremitted earnings of PRC subsidiaries are intended to reinvest FBREEBELIRRFETS -
to expand PRC markets.
There is no unrecognised deferred income tax assets for tax loss RZE_—_HSk_E-_—F5+=-H8
for the Group as at 31 December 2022 and 2021. =St+—H AEEMERRRBEERZ R
MBS EE-
OTHER GAINS - NET 20 Hfthliss— 288
2022 2021
g T —F
Us$’000 Us$'000
FE7T FEmT
Net exchange (losses)/gains ER (§58) W8 (489) 387
(Loss)/gain on disposal of property, plant HEME BERZBZ
and equipment (B518) = (36) 47
Sales of scrap materials BERL & 330 240
Government grants BT 7 Bh 114 96
Fair value gains on structural bank deposits  #&1&14E$RITERZ
NEEKEH 52 151
Others HAth 248 714
219 1,635
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21

EXPENSES BY NATURE

Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and distribution

21 BEESEZHES
HEMEK HERDHBE S RITEREXFT

expenses and administrative expenses are analysed as follows: BiEZHAZSHFOT
2022 2021
bl 3 TR
Us$'000 Us$’000
F=7T FEx
Changes in inventories and FERBRHERES

consumables used (Note 12) (FfsE12) 355,425 271,177
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 8) . E E#H (fizEs) 137 127
Amortisation of right-of-use assets (Note 7) R EE#HE (HI:x7) 549 405
Auditor’s remuneration 1% B4R BN
— Audit services —ZER 345 355
— Non-audit services —IEZEARTS 4 4
Depreciation on property, plant and ME-BERSZEINE

equipment (Note 6) (Fizx6) 17,746 17,679
Written off of property, plant and L E N Y Lk b

equipment (Note 6) (Fiz¥e6) 895 -
Reversal of impairment of inventories EFEREEE (fEE12)

(Note 12) (12) (113)
Write-off of inventory (Note 12) FEMHE (HEE12) - 16
Expense relating to short-term lease BIGHAEE B MAMNMAX

(Note 7) (M$5£7) 75 47
Employee benefit expenses (Note 26) EERMMAZ (MiEt26) 39,236 45,384
Provision for/(reversal of) of loss allowance FEUWNE ZERFEIEREH

of trade receivables (Note 13) B (ERED

(M35E13) 66 (39)
Loss on lease modification HEBITZEEK 1 -
Technical support fee (Note 32(b)) Bz & & (MizE32(b)) 2,139 2,210
Travelling expenses ERFEX 1,562 1,270
Transportation expenses RiBRE 12,345 11,714
Advertising expenses BEER% 2,071 3,115
Repair and maintenance expenses HENFRERS 13,059 9,890
Other expenses Hpz 8,699 5,773
Total cost of sales, selling and distribution  $H& B Z< ~ $8 & K 84
expenses and administrative expenses MY RITH A 4E%E 454,342 369,014
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22 FINANCE (COSTS)/INCOME - NET 22 B (W) WA
2022 2021
T F —E—
us$°000 us$'000
F=rx FE
Bank interest income RITHBUWA 393 562
Interest income from an associate KE—HBHEATDZHE
WA 5 7
Finance income B RS UL 398 569
Interest expense on bank borrowings RITEEMNEMZ (1,122) (469)
Interest expense on lease liabilities (Note 7) TAE&EF EH%
(fFEE7) (104) (92)
Less: amounts capitalised on qualifying B EENEE
assets (Note 6) BEAERIE
(MT5%6) 275 225
Finance costs Ep (951) (336)
Finance (costs)/income — net BFS (SEH) IR — B 4B (553) 233

23

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Taxation on profits has been calculated on the estimated
assessable profit for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing

in the countries in which the Group operates.

The amount of income tax charged to the consolidated income

statement represents:

23

FRigIRAX

B ZIRAREAN G ERRER R
EREEMERRCRITREFE -

REFEWBERANRZPRIEREERS

2022 2021

Us$‘000 Us$'000

FET FET

Enterprise income tax (“EIT") HEME 1,271 4,465

Under/(over) provision of income tax in BEFEMSREERRE

previous years / (HBEB#EE) 4 (14)
Total current tax BVERIR I 40 %R 1,275 4,451
Deferred income tax (Note 19) IRIEFRS (M3s%19) (1,088) (469)
187 3,982
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23

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

The income tax on the Group’s (loss)/profit before income tax
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using
the applicable tax rate for Vietnam Vedan, which is a major
subsidiary of the Group, as follows:

23

FiisHEAX (&)

AEEBRMERA (BB EF B
SRAMERBEAEREEZME QB
FEARANERREM EHERRRR
B #HHWTF :

2022 2021

BRI HF B —F

Us$’000 US$'000

FE7T FE

(Loss)/profit before income tax FREF1SMAT (5518 &F) (4.197) 15,014
Tax calculated at tax rate of 15% BI5% 2 MEFAEZRIA

(2021: 15%) TET 5 15%) (630) 2,252

Tax effects of different tax rates TRREZMBEE 114 1,763

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes ENCIE L o h 1,158 172

Income not subject to tax BEZFHRUA (459) (25)
Utilisation of previously unrecognised PR A REREREEE

tax losses - (166)

Under/(over) provision in prior years BEEEBETR
(HBzaEE) 4 (14)
Income tax expenses FriefmAsz 187 3,982

EIT is provided on the basis of the statutory profit for financial
reporting purposes, adjusted for income and expenses items
which are not assessable or deductible for income tax purposes.

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Vietnam

The applicable EIT rate for the Group's principal
operations in Vietnam is 15%, which is an incentive tax
rate offered by the Vietnam Government and is stipulated
in the subsidiary's investment license. For non-principal
operation in Vietnam, the applicable EIT rate for the
Group is 20%.

The PRC
The applicable EIT rate for the Group's operation in the
PRC is 25%.

Singapore/Hong Kong/Cambodia

No Singapore/Hong Kong/Cambodia profits tax has been
provided as the Group had no estimated assessable profit
arising in or derived from Singapore, Hong Kong and
Cambodia during the year.

Taiwan
The applicable EIT rate for the Group's operations in
Taiwan is 20%.

RS RIZ MR EEEHN
B BRFEMBBERR AT NN
Wz THE FH AR

() #&mE
BB RABIRESFAIEMFIA
FEETHRENIEERNEAL
EFBRERIS% AREREAN
FEBFFETHNERRE il
WFETBEEBM= > 2EENER

EEREMER20%-

(i) FE
FERTFENEZNBREERR
BMERH25% o

(i) #KREFE A RER

B P 7 & B A 5 A A U AR AN
W BBRRIEERNES G
FE SR AR i A > (R 3 8 4F 3R 0 9
BB TERN SRR

am
A EE A 0 E B0 & R
181 %20% -

(iv)
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24 DIVIDENDS 24 BR
A final dividend of 0.162 US cents per share amounting to EMBE_ZE”-_—F+Z-HA=+—H
US$2,466,000 that relates to the year ended 31 December LFFEESR0.162E11IE5 42,466,000
2021 was declared on 27 May 2022 and paid in June 2022. ETZREREERZZZIZFHA
T+HEtRAERER B _ENAIRT
The board does not recommend the payment of final dividend EEETEEMBE_S " "F+°H
in respect of the year ended 31 December 2022. =+—HUEFERMFBERE -
25 (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 25 Sk @R B
(a) Basic (a) Ez
Basic (loss)/earnings per share is calculated by dividing SREX (B8 BRI ATE
the (loss)/profit attributable to owners of the Company by EAEW (B8 CaMBRUERE
the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue BEITEBROMETOHAE-
during the year.
2022 2021
s %
Us$’000 Us$'000
FE7T FEmT
(Loss)/profit attributable to owners of  ASA B A AR (B518)
the Company (US$'000) JwH (FEmT) (4,386) 11,014
Weighted average number BETEBRNME
of ordinary shares in issue THH (FR)
(thousands) 1,522,742 1,522,742
Basic (loss)/earnings per share SREX (BB &F
(US cents per share) (ERREMW) (0.29) 0.72
(b) Diluted (b) #3
Diluted (loss)/earnings per share is same as basic (loss)/ BE_Z__FRIZ-—F+Z
earnings per share as there are no dilutive instruments for B=+—HLEFE BHRLEHE
the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021. TR - HER#E (e &BiH
SRER (BB BAHER -
26 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING 26 EEEMMAX (BIEEFHMH)

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

2022 2021

—ECHE TR

Us$’000 Us$’000

FE7T FE

Wages, basic salaries and allowances TE & R 32,806 37,062

Bonus TE4L 196 1,634
Pension costs — defined contribution plans  RK&E LA

—ERRMMETE 3,732 3,062

Other employee benefits Hig EEF 2,502 3,626

39,236 45,384
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27

RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

As stipulated by the labour laws in Vietnam, the Group
operates defined benefit pension plans for its employees in
Vietnam employed on or before 31 December 2008. The
provision is determined based on the employees’ years of
services as at 31 December 2008 and their average monthly

27

BHENEE

REERESHEERE FEESERZ
TZNE+ BT+ —HIUAEARAN
BrEERMUEEEMNEREHE -ZF
BREUEER-_TTNF+R=1—
BZRHFFHRRERE BBRINER

salary for the six-month period prior to the last service day. AR T A R1EH -
2022 2021
=== %
Uss$’000 Us$'000
FE7T FERT
As at 1 January w—B—H 1,505 1,460
Current service cost BVERAR 75 B =2 193 125
Payments g (172) (80)
As at 31 December R+ZBA=+—H 1,526 1,505
The principal actuarial assumptions used were as follows: FiEAMNEZERHERIZNOT
2022 2021
—g-= —mo—
uUs$’000 Us$'000
FET FET
Discount rate IRE 9% 9%
Salary growth rate FEEEX 6.0% — 7.0% 45% - 6.9%
Expected years of service remaining FEHA I ERAR 75 F R 13 - 15 yearsf 14 - 16 yearstF

Pursuant to the Law on Social Insurance in Vietnam effective
from 1 January 2009, the Group is required to contribute to
a state-sponsored employees’ social insurance scheme for its
employees in Vietnam. The Group has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when
they are due.

BREH_EEANF-B—HEENZH
EHERREZEZ AEEASHERES
MEXREEZES LT REEEFHH
MoMIZMMRE AEEBEEMAIN
BE- RN ENZARHEIDEEEF
fisz e
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28 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 28 EXEFENRER (FAATGEM (B
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF 622%) 38315 - AT WEEEHN
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE HER) RO ($£622GE) RE#H L
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF R BRE 2 &)

INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS)
REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING

RULES)
(A) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (A) EEESHRITHAEZME
The remuneration of every director and the chief BEERERITHRABEZFHNET!
executive is set out below: mE:
For the year ended 31 December 2022: BE-_E-_“H+”"“HA=+—HL
R
Other emoluments
paid or receivable
in respect of
director's other
services in
connection with
the management
Employer's  of the affairs of
Allowances and contribution the Company
Salary Discretionary  benefits in kind ~ to a retirement  or its subsidiary
Fees (Note a) bonuses (Noteb)  benefit scheme undertakings Total
ERESH
ERAAT
EWBATEH
BER FRESENRE
i RRRENER RIFEFIE BEXfHEKZ
Name of Director 2] ik (Hizta) BB (Fizth) e Hitb & At
US$'000 US§'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 USS'000 US$'000
FE7 RE 7 T£7 T£7 FE7 TEn T£7
Executive Director BiTES
Mr. Yang, Tou-Hsiung BRELE 1 343 - 17 - - 361
Mr. Yang, Cheng RELE - - - 16 - - 16
Mr. Yang, Kun-Hsiang (Note ) HMERES (Hizkc) 1 425 18 17 - - 461
Mr. Yang, Chen-Wen BRXEE - 219 - 17 - - 236
Mr. Yang, Kun-Chou RENEE - 181 - 17 - - 198
Non-executive Director FHTES
Mr. Chou, Szu-Cheng BHELLE - - - 16 - - 16
Mr. Huang, Ching-Jung BREEE 1 - - 16 - - 17
Independent non-executive ~ BUFHTES
Director
Mr. Chao, Pei-Hong BETEE 2 - - 16 - - 18
Mr. Chen, Joen-Ray RRHEL 2 - - 16 - - 18
Mr. Ko, Jim-Chen AEEEE 3 - - 16 - - 19
Mr. Huang Chung Fong HESESE 1 - - 16 - - 17
Total gt 1 1,168 18 180 - - 13717
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28 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 28 EXEFENRER (FAATGEM (B
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF 622%) 38315 - AT WEEEHN
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE HEE) R (5622GE) RE#HL
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF HRAREZHE) (@)

INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS)
REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING
RULES) (continued)

(A) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (A) EERSHRITHAEZME B)
(continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021: BE_Z-_—F+”°"“A=+—H1t
FE
Other emoluments

paid or receivable
in respect of

director's other
services in
connection with
the management
Allowances Employer's  of the affairs of
and benefits contribution to the Company
Salary Discretionary in kind a retirement or its subsidiary
Fees (Note &) bonuses (Note b) benefit scheme undertakings Total
BHEEH
532 VA
ENEATES
EER FRENEGRS
FiE3 EURREMER ENEAGE BEXARERZ
Name of Director iz k3 (MizEa) BT (Fit3kb) FAEMR HitiE At
US§'000 US$'000 US$'000 Us§'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
FEn FEn TEn R FEr Tin FEn
Executive Director BiTES
Mr. Yang, Tou-Hsiung BRERE 1 343 257 17 - - 618
Mr. Yang, Cheng RERE - - - 16 - - 16
Mr. Yang, Kun-Hsiang (Note ¢) ~ #53#%eE (H3kc) - 494 258 17 - - 769
Mr. Yang, Chen-Wen BRXEE - 218 180 17 - - 415
Mr. Yang, Kun-Chou RN E - 181 180 17 - - 378
Non-executive Director FRTES
Mr. Chou, Szu-Cheng BHELE - - - 16 - - 16
Mr. Huang, Ching-Jung BRERE 2 - - 16 - - 18
Independent non-executive ~ BUFHFTEE
Director
Mr. Chao, Pei-Hong HEREE 3 - - 16 - - 19
Mr. Chen, Joen-Ray RBHELE 2 - - 16 - - 18
Mr. Ko, Jim-Chen Jok3 bk 3 - - 16 - - 19
Mr. Huang Chung Fong RESEE 1 - - 16 - - 17
Total s 12 1,236 875 180 - - 2,303
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28 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 28

(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS)
REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING
RULES) (continued)

EFENRED (FREQEEH (B

6225) 38315 A8 HEESRF
mEH) AP (55622GE) REE L
HRAREZIRE) (&)

(A) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (A) EERSHRITHAEZME @)
(continued)
Aggregate other emoluments paid to
Aggregate emoluments paid to or or receivable by directors in respect of
receivable by directors in respect of their other services in connection with
their services as directors, whether of the management of the affairs of
the Company or its subsidiary undertakings the Company or its subsidiary undertakings Total Total
ESREREEZRE BRESHERS LAY
(FRATADIEMBARDZES) HIftB AR EHHAREMRN
BEXAHERZAME HitRBEESZ (IR z Hthi S8 a5t a5t
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
k- Sk 3 S k- - 3 S k- et 3 3
US$°000 Us$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 US$’000 US$'000
TERT FER ST FER FERT FET
191 192 1,186 2,111 1,377 2,303
Note: P 5E
(a)  Salary paid to a director is generally an emolument paid (@) XZNF—REZFNH=BEBAM

or receivable in respect of that person’s other services in
connection with the management of the affairs of the
Company or its subsidiary undertakings.

(b) Allowances and benefits in kind include meeting
attendance allowance.

(c) Mr. Yang, Kun-Hsiang is also the CEO of the Company and
his remuneration has been disclosed above.
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28 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 28
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS)
REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING
RULES) (continued)

(B) Directors’ retirement benefits
During the year ended 31 December 2022, no other
retirement benefits were paid to directors in respect of
their services in connection with the management of the
affairs of the Company or its subsidiaries undertaking
(2021: same).

(C) Directors’ termination benefits
During the year ended 31 December 2022, no
termination benefits were paid to directors (2021: same).

(D) Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services
During the year ended 31 December 2022, no
consideration was provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services (2021: same).

(E) Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors
During the year ended 31 December 2022, no loans,
quasi-loans and other dealings in favor of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and connected entities
with directors (2021: same).

(F) Directors’ material interests in transactions,

arrangements or contracts

Save as disclosed in Note 32, no significant transactions,
arrangements and contracts in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company was a party and in
which a director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year (2021: same).

EFENRERD (FREQEEH (B
6225) $3831% - A8 MEESF
mE R R (35622GE) RE#E L
HHRAURE ZIKE) (B)

(B)

(@]

(D)

(E)

(F)

EFREEN
BE_Z__F+°ZA=+—H1t
FEE O UERAETAHEEETELR
BT EM B A NEEAIRENR
B AHEHMEBRARER (T —F:
HEE) °

EEZERIEEN
BE_Z--_F+“HA=+—H1t
FE UIEASFEFSZHLILEER (2
T”—&F AR -

MIBHEFEREMAE = ARED
KE

HE_ZF+ZH=+—HL
FE IEMERESREMEE
ZHRERECEZ—F MR -

ERUES -SRSEFTHNE
ANEBERZESESNEMESES
SHEANER EBRREMKRS
=g

BHE_FZ-_-_F+°“HA=+—H1t
FEE - IENESE SZEERE
HREAERERZEESENERE
ERATHZAFHNER EEX
REMZZ (ZEZ——% : AR °

EENR5 ZHASHTHNEKX
i
FRMSEE32PRIREEE SN M FER
KA FEREMERL > AR IHE
SURAEREFERMAQRTE
FEENRERERERERNER
BRRG ZHHEN (2T Z—
F R -
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28 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 28 EXEFENRER (FAATGEM (B
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF 622%) 38315 - AT WEEEHN
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE HER) RO ($£622GE) RE#H L
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF HRARE ZHE) (&)

INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS)
REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING
RULES) (continued)

(G) Five highest paid individuals (G) ZEEEMEAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest rEEFAFERAZRENEAL
in the Group for the year included four (2021: four) BiENG (CEI—F @4E) AT
executive directors; their emoluments are reflected in the EE RENNEER X2
analysis presented above. The emoluments payable to the AR o RFEANEMNG T —% (Z
remaining one (2021: one) individual during the year is as T —F—%) ATZHMNOT
follows:
2022 2021
—E-= =
Us$°000 Us$’000
F=T FET
Wages, basic salaries and allowances L& - JE# &2 154 151
Bonus fe4T 46 48
Pension costs — defined BIARERA
contribution plans —EREME TGS - -
200 199
The emoluments of the remaining individual fell within BRTTATZEERUATEHR :

the following band:

Number of individuals

AE
2022 2021
ZEICHE TR
US$180,001 to US$205,000 180,001 T E
205,000% 7T 1 1
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29 NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 29 FERERERME
CASH FLOWS
(a) Cash generated from operations (a) EBELZHR®
2022 2021
Note US$'000 Us$'000
M 5F FEx FE
(Loss)/profit before BREF1SH AT (B518)
income tax Vvl (4,197) 15,014
Adjustments for: MU TIEERAZE
— Finance income — B A (398) (569)
— Finance costs — MBI 951 336
— Share of post-tax loss of — e — R R
an associate NEIFRRE
518 528 201
— Write-off of inventories —MEHES - 16
— Reversal of inventories —#EEFES (12) (113)
— Depreciation of —-ME - -BEXK
property, plant and RBITE
equipment 6 17.746 17,679
— Write-off of property, —ME-BEK
plant and equipment 5% 895 -
— Provision for/(reversal) —FEUWE 5 BRFUR
of impairment loss of BRIEZBE
trade receivables (#[E) 13 66 (39)
— Amortisation of —mE R
intangible assets 8 137 127
— Amortisation of right- —(FREEEEN
of-use assets 7 549 405
- Loss/(gain) on disposal —HEME -BE
of property, plant and V3540l itV
equipment (W z) 20 36 (47)
- Realised fair value gain — B IRTT
on structured bank ERmzB &R
deposits NFEEWE (52) (145)
— Unrealised fair value — B IEIRTT
gain on structured ERZ RER
bank deposits ASSEN i - (6)
- Loss on lease —HEEFTZIE%
modification 1 -
16,250 32,859
Change in working capital EEETEH
(excluding the effects of (Retiz&ERE
exchange differences on EXZEREHECE)
consolidation)
— Inventories —-EFH8 (38.867) (9,886)
— Trade receivables, —FERE ZERA
prepayments and FE R IE &
other receivables Hfth FE U IE (9.176) (1,948)
— Trade payables, accruals —ENEBEZERM
and other payables FEstE R &
Hth &I IR 8,588 12,233
- Net changes in —HBMEAT
balances with related g
companies FEE 948 (1,412)
Cash (used in)/generated from %3%5 (FfA) EL£2Z
operations W& (22,257) 31,846
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29 NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 29 FERMEFMERME (@)
CASH FLOWS (continued)
(a) Cash generated from operations (continued) (a) EBELEZRE @
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds EGEeRERERAN HEWE
from sale of property, plant and equipment comprise: B REEZIERIBEE .
2022 2021
ZEIHF =2
Us$'000 Us$'000
F=7 FExT
Net book amount (Note 6) IREEE (I5E6) 56 30
(Loss)/gain on disposal of property, HEME BER&RBZ
plant and equipment (Note 20) (B518) W&
(FFzE20) (36) 47

Proceeds from disposal of property, HEVME BERRBZ

plant and equipment FR1SFRIE 20 77
(b) Net (debt)/cash reconciliation (b) (&%) REFEZHIR
This section sets out an analysis of net (debt)/cash and REHHIINE 2 FEEZ (B
the movements in net (debt)/cash for each of the years REFBEONR (B HeFHE
presented. g85o
Net (debt)/cash (&%) REBHE
2022 2021
B HF —E_—F
Us$’000 Us$’000
F%=7T FET
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEZEY 47,810 66,136
Bank borrowings — repayable within ~ $R{TfEE - —EREE
one year (56,190) (31,661)
Bank borrowings — repayable after RITEE-N—FRER
one year (3,431) (8,647)
Lease liabilities — current portion HESE-BHITS (443) (369)
Lease liabilities — non-current portion & & & —JEENHASR (3,035) (2,650)
Net (debt)/cash (BB " REFHE (15,289) 22,809
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEY 47,810 66,136
Gross debt — fixed interest rates BHRE-BEFE (3.478) (11,013)
Gross debt — variable interest rates B MRE— T EA X (59.621) (32,314)
Net (debt)/cash (&) HE 28 (15,289) 22,809
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29 NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (continued)

(b)

Net (debt)/cash reconciliation (continued)

29

FARTRERWE (@

(b)

Liabilities from
financing activities

(&%) /" REFRZHIK (B)

RERMBEHZEE
Bank Bank Lease Lease
borrowings borrowings liabilities liabilities
due within due after - current - non-current
1 year 1 year portion portion
R—EREE KR-FE3H8 HEaRE HEER
ZRITBE ZRITEE —BPERE S —FEEDERER S
Us$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 US$'000
=R FERT =R TEn
Net debt as at 1 January 2021 HZZZ—
—B—HZE%28R (32,373) (13,986) (199) (2,818)
Cash outflows/(inflows) Be&hit/ (RA) 6,709 (646) 375 -
Non-cash flow movements: FREF=LE .
Foreign exchange adjustments ~ SMEZEE (12) - 5 -
Interest expense on lease HEAGENSMYE
liabilities - - (92) -
Other non-cash movement HitFREEH (5,985) 5,985 (458) 168
Net debt as at WZEZ-&
31 December 2021 +ZB=+—-Hz
&% (31,661) (8,647) (369) (2,650)
Cash outflows/(inflows) BERt/ (RA) (19,538) - 644 -
Non-cash flow movements: FREF=LE .
Foreign exchange adjustments ~ SMEZEE 225 - 17 -
Interest expense on lease HEAGENSMZ
liabilities - - (104) -
Other non-cash movement HitERE2E (5,216) 5,216 (631) (385)
Net debt as at RIEZZ&
31 December 2022 +ZB=+—-H2
BHEE (56,190) (3,431) (443) (3,035)
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30 COMMITMENTS 30 ik
The Group’s capital expenditure contracted for at the end of REERKRESARETNEREEZE
the reporting period but not yet incurred is as follows: AZHWMTF .
2022 2021
ZEICHE —E—
Us$'000 Us$’000
T=E7T FET
Contracted but not provided for [ERIESEEES
Property, plant and equipment ME - BERSEE 788 2,302
Investment in an associate (Note 10) R—EBEREZEE
(MF5E10) 112 112
900 2,414
31 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 31 HAAaR/
At 31 December 2022, the Company has given guarantees for RIEZZHF+ZHA=+—H £AF
bank facilities of subsidiaries amounting to US$142,075,000 A B AT AS142,075,000E T (ZF
(2021: US$138,028,000), of which US$95,481,000 (2021: ——%F:138,028,000% 7T) Z RITRIE 12
US$110,258,000) has not been utilised. fHiE{R > 295,481,000k (ZE = —

£ 110,258,000 7T) HARENF o

32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 32 HREALXRS

The ultimate controlling party of the Group is the Yang Family, TEBERRERFABERE ERNES
whose members are Messrs. Yang, Tou-Hsiung, Yang, Cheng, EHERAEE BELRE BRKELE
Yang, Yung-Huang, Yang, Kun-Hsiang, Yang, Kun-Chou, Yang, RIS A AN R BRERE
Yung-Jen, Yang, Chen-Wen, Yang, Wen-Hu, Yang, Tung, Ms. BRXEE - GXREE - GREE 15
Yang, Wen-Yin, Ms. Yang, Shu-Hui and Ms. Yang, Shu-Mei. Xt - HRER LT RGREZ L
(a) The table below summarises the related parties and (@) TRV _Z=__+_H8

nature of their relationship with the Group as at 31 Et+t—HZEREALREELRE

December 2022: EMRMERME !

Related party Relationship with the Group

BREAT BAEEZ R

Vedan Enterprise CORP (“Taiwan Vedan”) A substantial shareholder of the Company

R EERHERRE (T8EKM) KRBNFERR

Vedan Biotechnology Corporation (“Vedan Bio") A company commonly controlled by the Yang Family

RAEMREBRAERAS (RAEYRE) —EHRGREREEEZERZ AR

Dacin International Holdings Ltd. An associate of the Group

EMERERERAF AEENKE QT

Capron Group Limited A company commonly controlled by the Yang Family

—REHRGERRELEERZ AT
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32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

(c)

32 HEALTRE @)

Significant related party transactions, which were carried (b) HEAEEBEEBEBIEPETNE

out in the normal course of the Group’s business, are as AEREEALTRZNOTF :

follows:

2022 2021
-2 TR
Note Us$’000 Us$'000
B 5 FET FEx
Sale of goods to Taiwan Vedan AaSKAEESR (i) 9,848 7,761
Purchase of goods from Taiwan SEKAREER
Vedan (i) - 1
Sale of goods to Vedan Bio M ERIIHE
& (i) 568 322
Technical support fee paid to Al & K AR
Taiwan Vedan YIRE (ii) 2,139 2,210
Agency commission income [\ & 72 IR £ U ER B9 A EE
received from Taiwan Vedan GELON (i) 2 2

Notes: Ff &

() In the opinion of the directors of the Company, sales to/ () HATNEFERA REERGERAER
purchases from the related parties were conducted in BALFRZHE BEMEANLRE
the normal course of business in accordance with the PBIEREEBBERET
underlying terms.

(i) In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the (i) HARNEERA ZEXZEHEER
transactions were carried out in the normal course of BIEFRET I BIRIEAER HE N KR
business and the fees are charged in accordance with the Y& o
terms of underlying agreements.

Key management compensation () TEEBEAEMS

The compensation paid or payable to key management,
including all executive directors and senior management,

RESERFBENHAECEIEEEA
E (BEMBATESASRERE

for employee services is shown below. B) 2 #HBEsI T o
2022 2021
=2 —E—F
Uss$’000 Us$'000
FET FET
Salaries and other short-term FreEcHEMBEHRESRET
employee benefits 2,502 3,305
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32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 32 BREALRS (@)
(d) Year-end balances with the related parties (d) HEREALZEXRGEH
As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group had the RIE-_—_ER-E-_—=5+=AH
following significant balances with the related parties: =+—H AEREFREAEALTZ
FELEHRUOT -
2022 2021
—EZC B —F
Note Uss$’000 US$'000
B 5% TET FE
Current: BIEA :
Amount due from Taiwan FEUR & Bk R IE
Vedan (i) 33 1,442
Amount due from Vedan Bio FE U R £ A 3
MIE (i) 93 -
Amount due to Taiwan Vedan FEfT & BRI RIE (i) (146) (505)
Loan to an associate BT —MHBER[BZ
™M (iif) 120 120
Amount due from an associate Bl — R E R E]
MIE (iv) 8 3
Amount due to Capron Group &1 Capron Group
Limited Limited X IB (v) 3) (12)
Notes: WisE
(i) All balances with Taiwan Vedan are unsecured, interest- (i) HEeBEkS ZRE&REAEIR
free and have no fixed terms of payment. W B REEEIEHE
(ii) The balance with Vedan Bio is unsecured, interest-free and (ii) HRKBEYREZER S EIK
has no fixed terms of payment. 1 B R EE B
(i) The loan to an associate is unsecured, bears interest at iy #HBF—REEEATZEREEIR
4.5% (2021: 4.5%) per annum, denominated in US$ and I IRERNELISY (ZE-—4F
is repayable on demand. 4.5%) st B UAETTEHE ) WIERE
EREER
(iv)  The balance represents interest receivable from an (iv) #BiERER—BHEATZF
associate. Bo
(v) The balance with Capron Group Limited was unsecured, (v) BCapron Group LimitedZ #5857
interest-free, denominated in US$ and repayable within EIRIE e M ETHEL AR
one year. —FREER-

210  Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk FHEIRS (Z28%) BIR AT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR MR M

33 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF 33 FATIEEEERKREEEH
THE COMPANY

Balance sheet of the Company TATEERMRAR

As at 31 December

w+=ZHB=+—H
2022 2021
B HE T
Note Us$‘000 Us$’000
B 5 FEm FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets EREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RHBARZEE 166,030 166,030
Investment in an associate R—EBERTZ
BE 4,174 4,702
Loan to a subsidiary BYIWBATIZER 293 125
Total non-current assets ERBEERE 170,497 170,857
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE W B /&8 A Bl R 1B 42,138 50,987
Amount due from a related party FEWBRIEANLTRIA 33 25
Amount due from an associate FEU — R B E AR
B 8 3
Loan to an associate BT —HEBEARZ
=g 120 120
Loan to a subsidiary BFWBATIZER 185 75
Prepayments and other receivables 8 (7 7R 18 R E A FE U
RIE 391 126
Cash and cash equivalents RERREZEY 4,072 5,014
Total current assets MEIEEMEE 46,947 56,350
Total assets BERE 217,444 227,207
EQUITY W
Equity attributable to owners of KATEBA
the Company FE(L =
Share capital & 2 15,228 15,228
Reserves B (Note(a))
(FtzE(a)) 198,974 207,576
Total equity R AREE 214,202 222,804

Annual Report 2022 &3 211



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR M IR R MR

33 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF 33 FZREEEEFERREEES (B
THE COMPANY (continued)

Balance sheet of the Company (continued) TATEERERAR (B

As at 31 December

w+=ZHB=+—H
2022 2021
kSt = —fF
Note Us$’000 Us$'000
M 5% TFET FE
LIABILITIES aE
Current liabilities WENRME
Accruals and other payables FEEt E A R RS
RIE 1,633 2,457
Bank borrowings RITBE 1,303 1,436
Current income tax liabilities BNEAPRIS IR AR = 5
Amount due to a subsidiary FE 1 B 8 A R FRIE 160 -
Amount due to a related party FESBRIEANLTRIA 146 505
Total current liabilities mEN B EAEER 3,242 4,403
Total equity and liabilities Rk aERE 217.444 227,207
The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board AAEEEEBGBREEESFEN
of Directors on 21 March 2023 and were signed on its behalf. —_=ZFEZAZ+—HBBHMIEATMNAL
RREZ -
Yang, Tou-Hsiung Yang, Kun-Hsiang
L ELY 15 16 ¥
Director Director
EF EZ
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33 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF 33 FZREBEEERREEED (@)
THE COMPANY (continued)

Balance sheet of the Company (continued) TATEERRR (B
Note (a) Reserve movement of the Company MizE(a) A A B EEHE S EY
Share Exchange Retained
premium reserve earnings Total
B iEE ERH#E REEN EEE L
Us$'000 Us$’000 Us$'000 Us$'000
FET FE7T FE3T FET
At 1 January 2021 WZEZ-_—%—HF—H 194,098 164 32,773 227,035
Comprehensive loss 2EBE
Loss for the year REEEE - - (8,327) (8,327)
Other comprehensive loss Hh2mEsE
Currency translation difference  [ERZEZ8 - 60 - 60
Total comprehensive loss 2EEGEAE - 60 (8,327) (8,267)
Dividends paid BKRE - - (11,192) (11,192)
At 31 December 2021 RZEZ—F
+ZA=+—8 194,098 224 13,254 207,576
At 1 January 2022 WZE--“F—H—H 194,098 224 13,254 207,576
Comprehensive loss 2HEEE
Loss for the year KEEEE - - (5,958) (5,958)
Other comprehensive loss Hih2 @SS
Currency translation difference  EREZE - (178) - (178)
Total comprehensive loss 2HEFIE4EEE - (178) (5,958) (6,136)
Dividends paid BEKRE - - (2,466) (2,466)
At 31 December 2022 i
+ZA=+—H 194,098 46 4,830 198,974
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